






     
MINUTES REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

 
Salida, Colorado                                    January 3, 2012                                            6:00 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:04
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE –
 
Led by Mayor Don Stephens. 
 
ROLL CALL - 
 
Present at roll call were Mayor Don Stephens, Council Members Keith Baker, Jim McCormick, Jay 
Moore, Steven Stewart, Michael Bowers and Tom Yerkey.  Also present were Interim Cit
Administrator Dara MacDonald, City Clerk Betty Schwitzer, A
Gilpin and City Attorney Karl Hanlon. 
 
Absent was Treasurer Eileen Rogers. 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION -

John Bayuk of Salida asked if utility bills could be 
item. He also encouraged council to give Dara MacDonald a real shot
position, as she is doing a great job. 

PRESENTATION –  

SCHEDULED ITEMS- 
 

1. Consent Agenda (Audrey Gilpin)
a. Approval of Agenda 
b. Approval of Minutes:  December 20, 2011
c. City property requests: None
d. Special Events Liquor 

 
Stewart moved to combine and approve the remaining items on the consent agenda
with item number 4 removed.  Moore
THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
  

                
MINUTES REGULAR MEETING  

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
448 E. 1st Street 

Salida, Colorado                                    January 3, 2012                                            6:00 

ting was called to order at 6:04 p.m. 

– 

Don Stephens, Council Members Keith Baker, Jim McCormick, Jay 
Moore, Steven Stewart, Michael Bowers and Tom Yerkey.  Also present were Interim Cit

, City Clerk Betty Schwitzer, Acting Deputy City Clerk 
torney Karl Hanlon.  

Treasurer Eileen Rogers.  

-   

John Bayuk of Salida asked if utility bills could be clearer, perhaps with an explanation for each line 
item. He also encouraged council to give Dara MacDonald a real shot at the City Administrator 
position, as she is doing a great job.  

(Audrey Gilpin) 

Approval of Minutes:  December 20, 2011 
City property requests: None 
Special Events Liquor Permit: None 

moved to combine and approve the remaining items on the consent agenda
with item number 4 removed.  Moore seconded the motion.  With all in consensus, 
THE MOTION CARRIED.  

Salida, Colorado                                    January 3, 2012                                            6:00 p.m. 

Don Stephens, Council Members Keith Baker, Jim McCormick, Jay 
Moore, Steven Stewart, Michael Bowers and Tom Yerkey.  Also present were Interim City 

Clerk Audrey 

, perhaps with an explanation for each line 
at the City Administrator 

Section 1 

moved to combine and approve the remaining items on the consent agenda 
seconded the motion.  With all in consensus, 



2. 1st reading Municipal Code Ch. 8, 10 & 11 – (Dara MacDonald)                                Section 2 
     Ordinance 2012-01 repealing and reenacting Chapters 8, 10 and 11 of Salida 

Municipal Code, “Vehicles and Traffic,” “General Offenses,” and “Streets, Sidewalks and 
Public Property.” 

 
MacDonald said a few changes in Chapter 8 include the addition of low powered scooters. 
Police Chief Terry Clark said there are variations of low powered scooters, some require a 
driver’s license and some require insurance.  
 
MacDonald said within Ch. 10 on general offenses, outdated provisions were eliminated.  
Changes in Ch. 11 include clarifying snow removal on U.S. 50.   
Stewart asked how are alleys treated and who is responsible for shoveling where the sidewalk 
crosses an alley. MacDonald said residential alleys are not plowed.  
 
Another addition to Ch. 11, MacDonald said, is encroachments go to the city administrator 
instead of city council to speed up the process for applicants. She said typically 
encroachments involve existing buildings.  
 
In practice, approving weddings and family reunions are approved administratively; 
therefore, the code is changed to reflect that. Also, MacDonald recommended eliminated the 
Scout Hut and SteamPlant out of the “Parks” section in the municipal code.  
 
Regarding snow removal, John Bayuk of Salida said four hours after a storm to remove snow 
is too difficult for “older” citizens. He would like to see a clause to allow a longer period to 
shovel snow.  
 
MaryAnn Kalte, Salida resident, inquired how the city enforces snow removal on absentee 
owners who do not shovel their sidewalks.  
 
MacDonald said it is complaint-based, and the City issues a citation to those owners.  
 

Moore motioned to approve Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2012, AN ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO REPEALING AND REENACTING 
CHAPTERS 8, 10, AND 11 OF THE SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC,” “GENERAL OFFENSES,” AND “STREETS, 
SIDEWALKS, AND PUBLIC PROPERTY. Stewart seconded the motion. With all 
in consensus, THE MOTION CARRIED.   

 
3. Designating a Public Posting Place –(Audrey Gilpin)                                               Section 3 

      Resolution 2012-01 designating the place to post public notices for City Council meetings 
and other city business. 

 
Gilpin said the posting location for city business will be at the Touber Building on the bulletin board 
near the Utilities and Finance office. 
 

Moore motioned to approve RESOLUTION 2012-01 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO DESIGNATING THE PLACE 
FOR THE POSTING OF PUBLIC NOTICES FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 



AND OTHER CITY BUSINESS. Bowers seconded the motion. With all in consensus, the 
MOTION CARRIED.  

 
4. License to Encroach Agreement for 149 W. First St. – (Dara MacDonald)              Section 5                   

      Resolution 2012-03 approving a License to Encroach Agreement with Pettitt Holdings, LLC 
for the existing building at 149 W. First Street. 

 
Stewart made a motion to approve RESOLUTION 2012-03 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY  
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO  
SIGN A LICENSE TO ENCROACH AGREEMENT WITH PETTITT HOLDINGS, LLC. 
Moore seconded the motion. With all in consensus, the MOTION CARRIED. 

 

5. GOCO Agreement for Salida High School Turf Field  – (Dara MacDonald)          Section 6 
           Resolution 2012-04 supporting the agreement between the City of Salida and the State Board 
of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund for the Salida Turf Field Project.   
 
Baker made a motion to approve Resolution 2012-04 a resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Salida, Colorado, supporting the agreement between the City of Salida and the State Board of the 
Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund for the Salida Turf Field project and authorizing the Mayor to 
sign the agreement. Moore seconded the motion. With all in consensus, the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
6. Grand Avenue Cost Sharing – (Karl Hanlon)                                                             Section 7 

     Resolution 2012-05 acting by and through the City of Salida Water and Sewer Enterprise, 
regarding the 2005 Grand Avenue Water and Sewer Project. 
 
Hanlon said after researching, a formal action from council could not be found regarding the 
Grand Avenue Project. In effect, a modified resolution was created. 
 

Stewart made a motion to approve Resolution 2012-04 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE 
CITY OF SALIDA WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE, REGARDING THE 2005 GRAND 

AVENUE WATER AND SEWER PROJECT. Moore seconded the motion. With all in favor, 
the MOTION CARRIED. 

       
7. Administrator/City Attorney/Deputy City Clerk                                                     Section 8 

a. Interim Administrator’s Report – Dara MacDonald   
1. Special Event Liquor Licensing  

 
MacDonald said the State has made the option available for local special event liquor licenses to be 
approved by the city administrator without have to include state review. The option should shorten 
turn around by ten days. 
 
Moore made a motion allowing the city administrator to approve local special event liquor license 
permits. Stewart seconded the motion. With all in consensus, the MOTION CARRIED.   
 
MacDonald asked council if the city could spend money to assess whether “combining” forces with 
the Buena Vista Airport for the Harriet Alexander Field Airport is a possibility. To obtain advice 
from Dan Reimer, an attorney who has worked with the Federal Aviation Administration, would 



cost up to $3,000. The shared cost with Chaffee County, Buena Vista and the City would not be 
more than $1,000. 
 

Moore motioned the city not spend more than $1,000 for Reimer’s services. Stewart 
seconded the motion. With all in consensus, the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
MacDonald said an appraisal for the Salida Siding Trail is needed for the GOCO grant. She needs 
authority to move forward with the appraisal, which should cost about $3,000 
 

Yerkey motioned to approve spending no more than $5,000 on an appraisal for the 
Salida Siding Trail. Stewart seconded the motion. With all in consensus, the 
MOTION CARRIED.  

                   
b. City Attorney Report – Karl Hanlon 

1. NRC Project update 
Hanlon said they are working on solidifying a construction schedule.  
 

c. Acting Deputy City Clerk Report – Audrey Gilpin 
Gilpin informed council of a Colorado Municipal League workshop February 3, 2012 in Denver for 
newly elected officials. The City will pay for the registration fee, mileage and meals for councilmen 
who choose to attend.  

 
8. Elected Official Reports                                                                                             Section 9  

a. City Treasurer – Eileen Rogers – absent. 
City Finance Director Jan Schmidt reported sales tax collections totaled $283,245 in October.  For 
the first ten months of 2011, collections total $3,074,668. Compared to 2010, October collections 
increased $30,997, or 12.3%. Year-to-date collections increased $242,824, or 8.6%.  With just one 
exception, collections have increased twelve months in a row. 
 
Projecting the trends out for the remainder of the year, Salida can expect an increase of 
approximately $380,000 in sales tax revenue for 2012 calendar year. 
  

b. Mayor – Don Stephens – No Report  
c. City Council- Keith Baker, Michael Bowers, Jim McCormick, Jay Moore,  
                       Steven Stewart, and Tom Yerkey – No Report 

 
Moore motioned to adjourn at 7:01 p.m. Baker seconded the motion. With all in consensus, the 
MOTION CARRIED.   
 

                                   ________________________________ 
         Mayor   

[SEAL]        
 
____________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk  
Respectfully submitted by Audrey Gilpin, Acting Deputy City Clerk  
 









































CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 1 

(Series of 2012) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO REPEALING AND 

REENACTING CHAPTERS 8, 10, AND 11 OF SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE, 

“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC,” “GENERAL OFFENSES,” AND “STREETS, 

SIDEWALKS, AND PUBLIC PROPERTY.” 

 

WHEREAS, the City has undertaken a comprehensive rewrite of the Salida Municipal 

Code in order to improve City administration, eliminate inconsistent provisions and procedures, 

and adopt streamlined processes for licensing and code enforcement, among other goals; and 

 

WHEREAS, as part of the comprehensive rewrite process, staff has recommended 

revisions to Chapter 8, “Vehicles and Traffic,” to adopt the 2010 Model Traffic Code, implement 

traffic regulations not governed by the Model Traffic Code, and consolidate the Code provisions 

concerning abandoned and inoperable vehicles into Chapter 8; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff recommended revisions to Chapter 10, “General Offenses,” to update, 

consolidate, and simplify the lawful assembly provisions so as to provide better notice to citizens 

and the Salida Police Department and to eliminate unnecessary and outdated provisions; and  

 

WHEREAS, staff recommended revisions to Chapter 11, “Streets, Sidewalks, and Public 

Property,” in several respects, including:  (a) requiring sidewalks adjacent to properties to be 

maintained in a safe and usable condition by the respective property owners; (b) authorizing the 

City Administrator to approve revocable encroachment permits or refer the decision to City 

Council for encroachments with greater impacts; and (c) eliminating the City’s SteamPlant Event 

Center as a City park; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Salida City Council finds and determines that the best interests of the 

citizens of Salida will be served by repealing in its entirety and reenacting to read as follows 

Chapters 8, 10, and 11 of the Salida Municipal Code. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO:   

 

Section 1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein. 

 

Section 2. Chapter 8 of the Salida Municipal Code, AVehicles and Traffic,@ is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and reenacted as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

 

Section 3. Chapter 10 of the Salida Municipal Code, AGeneral Offenses,@ is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and reenacted as set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

 



City of Salida, Colorado 

Ordinance No. 1, Series of 2012 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 4. Chapter 11 of the Salida Municipal Code, AStreets, Sidewalks, and Public 

Property,@ is hereby repealed in its entirety and reenacted as set forth on Exhibit C attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, ADOPTED and ORDERED PUBLISHED IN 

FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City Council on the 3
rd

 

day of January, 2012 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 17
th

 day of January, 

2012. 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, AS AMENDED, FINALLY ADOPTED and 

ORDERED PUBLISHED AS TO AMENDMENTS AND TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on 

the 17
th

 day of January, 2012.  

  

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the 6th day of 

January, 2012, and AS TO AMENDMENTS AND TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the 

_____day of __________, 2012. 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk   

 











































































(b) It is an affirmative defense to any provision of this Article, that the act was committed by 

a police officer in the lawful discharge of his or her duties.   

 

10-8-20. Carrying concealed weapon; forfeiture. 

 

(a) It is unlawful for any person to wear under his or her clothes or concealed about his or 

her person, or to display in a threatening manner any dangerous or deadly weapon, including but not 

limited to any pistol, revolver, metallic knuckles, Bowie knife, dirk, dagger or knife resembling a Bowie 

knife, or any other dangerous or deadly weapon. 

 

(b) It shall be an affirmative defense that the defendant was:   

(1)  A person in his or her own dwelling or place of business or on property owned by him or 

her or under his or her control at the time of the act of carrying;  

(2)  A person who, prior to the time of carrying a concealed weapon, has been issued a valid 

written permit pursuant to Title 18, Article 12, C.R.S. to carry the weapon and was carrying the 

weapon in accordance with all applicable state, federal, and local laws, regulations, and permit 

conditions;  

(3) A person was within a private automobile or other private means of conveyance, for the 

lawful protection of his or her person or property or another’s person or property while traveling 

(c) It is unlawful for any person to sell, offer to sell, display, use, possess or carry any knife 

or knives having the appearance of a pocket knife the blade or blades of which can be opened by a flick of 

a button, pressure on the handle or other mechanical contrivance.  Any such knife is hereby declared to be 

a dangerous or deadly weapon within the meaning of Subsection (a) above, and shall be subject to 

forfeiture to the City as provided in Subsection (d) below. 

 

(d) Every person convicted of any violation of this Section shall forfeit to the City such 

dangerous or deadly weapon so concealed or displayed. 

 

(e) Nothing in this Section shall be construed to forbid United States Marshals, sheriffs, 

constables and their deputies and any regular, special or ex officio police officer or any other law 

enforcement officer from carrying or wearing, while on duty, such weapons as shall be necessary in the 

proper discharge of their duties.   

 

10-8-30. Disposition of confiscated concealed weapons. 

 

It is the duty of every police officer, upon making any arrest and taking such a concealed weapon 

from the person of the offender, to deliver the weapon to the Municipal Judge, to be held by him or her 

until the final determination of the prosecution for said offense, and upon the finding of guilt, it shall then 

be the duty of the Municipal Judge to deliver said weapon forthwith to the Chief of Police, who shall 

make disposition of the weapon.   

 

10-8-40. Prohibited use of weapons. 

 

(a) It is illegal for a person to commit any of the following: 

 

(1) To knowingly and unlawfully aim a firearm at another person. 

 



(2) To recklessly or with criminal negligence discharge any firearm or any device utilizing a 

chemical explosion or shoot a bow and arrow within the City limits. 

 

(3) To knowingly set a loaded gun, trap or device designed to cause an explosion upon being 

tripped or approached, and leave it unattended by a competent person immediately present. 

 

(4) To have in his or her possession a firearm while he or she is under the influence of 

intoxicating liquor or of a controlled substance.  Possession of a permit issued under Section 18-

12-105.1, C.R.S., as amended, is no defense to a violation of this Section 

 

(5) To knowingly aim, swing or throw a throwing star or nunchaku at another person, or 

knowingly possess a throwing star or nunchaku in a public place except for the purpose of 

presenting an authorized public demonstration or exhibition or pursuant to instruction in 

conjunction with an organized school or class.  When throwing stars or nunchaku are being 

transported for a public demonstration or exhibition or for a school or class, they shall be 

transported in a closed, nonaccessible container. 

 

(b) Nothing contained in this Section shall prevent the use of any such instruments in 

shooting galleries or in any private grounds or residences under circumstances when such instrument can 

be fired, discharged or operated in such a manner as not to endanger persons or property and also in such 

manner as to prevent the projectile from traversing any grounds or space outside the limits of such 

gallery, grounds or residence; and further provided that nothing herein contained shall be construed to 

prevent the carrying of any type of gun whatsoever, when unloaded and properly cased, to or from any 

range or gallery. 

 

(c) Nothing contained in this Section shall prevent the use of any such instruments by any 

police officer as shall be necessary in the proper discharge of his or her duties. 

 

10-8-50. Selling weapons to intoxicated persons. 

 

(a) It is unlawful for any person to purchase, sell, loan or furnish any gun, pistol or other 

firearm in which any explosive substance can be used, to any person under the influence of alcohol or any 

narcotic drug, stimulant or depressant, to any person in a condition of agitation and excitability, or to any 

minor under the age of eighteen (18) years. 

 

(b) Such unlawful purchase, sale, loan or furnishing shall be grounds for revocation of any 

license issued by the City to such person.   

 

ARTICLE IX 

Noise Control 

 

10-9-10. Purpose. 

 

This Article is enacted to protect, preserve and promote the health, safety, welfare, peace and 

quiet of the citizens of the City through the reduction, control and prevention of noise.  It is the intent of 

this Article to establish standards that will eliminate and reduce unnecessary and excessive noise which is 

physically harmful and otherwise detrimental to individuals and the community in the enjoyment of life, 

property and the conduct of business.   

 

10-9-20. Definitions. 

 



The following words and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the meanings respectively 

ascribed to them: 

 

Ambient sound level means the A-weighted sound level of all sound associated with a given 

environment, exceeded ninety percent (90%) of the time (L90), measured and being a composite 

of sounds from many sources during the period of observation while the sound from the noise 

source of interest is not present. 

 

Amplified sound means any sound produced by any means, the volume of which is amplified or 

increased through electronic or electromechanical means. 

 

A-weighted sound pressure level means the sound pressure level as measured with a sound level 

meter using the A-weighting network.  The standard notation is dB(A). 

 

Commercial power equipment means any equipment or device rated at more than five (5) 

horsepower and used for building repairs or property maintenance, excluding snow removal and 

lawn care equipment. 

 

Commercial premises means any developed parcel or premises where less than fifty percent 

(50%) of the total gross floor area of all buildings on the premises meets and satisfies the 

definition of residential premises as set forth below. 

 

Construction equipment means any device or mechanical apparatus operated by fuel, electric or 

pneumatic power in the excavation, construction, repair, maintenance or demolition of any 

building, structure, lot, parcel, street, alley, waterway or appurtenance thereto. 

 

Decibel means a logarithmic unit of measure often used in measuring magnitude of sound.  The 

symbol is dB. 

 

Domestic power equipment means any equipment or device rated at five (5) horsepower or less 

and used for building repairs or grounds maintenance, excluding snow removal, tree maintenance 

and lawn care equipment. 

 

Emergency power generator means the equipment used to generate electrical power in the event 

of an interruption, malfunction or failure of the electrical power supplied by a service provider. 

 

Emergency vehicle means an authorized motor vehicle that has sound warning devices such as 

whistles, sirens and bells which can lawfully be used when responding to an emergency or police 

activity, or which is required by state or federal regulations. 

 

Emergency work means an activity made necessary to restore property to a safe condition 

following a severe weather incident, natural disaster or public calamity, or work required to 

protect persons or property from injury or exposure to imminent danger.  It includes work by 

private or public entities for immediately providing or restoring necessary utility service, as well 

as all situations deemed necessary by the City. 

 

Industrial premises means any premises where manufacturing, processing or fabrication of goods 

or products takes place. 

 

Lawn care equipment means equipment used to cut, vacuum or sweep grass, blow away lawn 

clippings or leaf debris, or aerate turf. 



 

Motor vehicle means any vehicle which is self-propelled and used for transporting persons or 

property upon public roadways, inclusive of motorcycles.  The term motor vehicle shall not 

include:  aircraft, watercraft, mechanical street sweepers, self-propelled construction equipment, 

motor vehicles operated exclusively on private property for recreational or amusement purposes, 

vehicles used exclusively on stationary rails, or specialized utility vehicles normally used only on 

private property in the daily course of business, such as forklifts and pallet movers. 

 

Muffler-approved exhaust type means an apparatus which consists of a series of chambers, baffle 

plates or other mechanical devices designed for the purpose of receiving and transmitting exhaust 

gases and which reduces sound emanating from such an apparatus by at least twenty (20) decibels 

in the A-weighting network dB(A) from the nonmuffled condition. 

 

Noise means sound that is unwanted and which causes or tends to cause annoyance and/or 

adverse psychological or physiological effects on human beings, or disturbs the peace and quiet 

of persons on a receptor premises. 

 

Premises means any building, structure, land, utility or portion thereof, including all 

appurtenances, and also includes yards, lots, courts, inner yards and properties without buildings 

or improvements owned or controlled by a person. 

 

Property line means that real or imaginary line and its vertical or horizontal extension which 

separates real property owned or controlled by any person from contiguous real property owned 

or controlled by another person, inclusive of the lines that separate units in a multiple-unit 

building. 

 

Public premises means all real property, including appurtenances thereon, which is owned or 

controlled by any governmental entity, and includes streets, alleys, sidewalks, parks and 

waterways. 

 

Receptor premises means a premises (residential, commercial, industrial or public) as listed in 

Table 10-A below which is receiving noise emitted from a source premises after crossing one (1) 

or more property lines. 

 

Residential premises means any lot, parcel or premises where single-family, two-family or 

multiple-dwelling units exist, and shall also include schools, churches, nursing homes, long-term 

care and similar institutional facilities where the use of more than fifty percent (50%) of the gross 

floor area of the subject premises satisfies and meets this definition. 

 

Snow removal equipment means any equipment used for removing snow from land or building 

surfaces and includes snowplows, snowblowers, snow sweepers and snow shovels. 

 

Sound means an oscillation in pressure, stress, particle displacement and particle velocity which 

induces auditory sensation. 

 

Sound level meter means an apparatus or instrument, including a microphone, amplifier, 

attenuator, output meter and frequency weighting networks, for the measurement of sound levels.  

The sound level meter shall be of a design and have the characteristics of a Type 2 or better 

instrument as established by the American National Standards Institute, Publication S1.4-1971, 

entitled Specification for Sound Level Meters, or its current successor publication. 

 



Sound pressure level means twenty (20) times the logarithm to the base ten (10) of the ratio of the 

pressure of a sound to the reference pressure of twenty (20) micronewtons per square meter (20 x 

106 Newtons/meter2), and is expressed in decibels (dB). 

 

Source premises means a premises (residential, commercial, industrial or public) as listed in 

Table 10-A that is emitting noise that is crossing one (1) or more property lines and impacting the 

receptor premises. 

 

Tree maintenance equipment means any equipment used in trimming or removing trees only, and 

shall not be limited to chainsaws, chippers and stump removers.   

 

10-9-30. Prohibitions. 

 

(a) It is unlawful for any person to use, keep, have in his or her possession or harbor any 

domesticated animals which, by frequent or habitual howling, barking, meowing, squawking or 

otherwise, shall cause annoyance or disturbance to persons in the neighborhood; provided, however, that 

the provisions of this Section shall not apply to hospitals licensed for the treatment of small animals. 

 

(b) It is unlawful for any person to carry or use upon a vehicle, other than Police or Fire 

Department vehicles or emergency vehicles for public use, any gong, siren, whistle or red light similar to 

that used on ambulances or vehicles of the Police and Fire Departments. 

 

(c) It is unlawful for any person to emit or cause to be emitted any noise which leaves the 

premises on which it originates, inclusive of a public premises, crosses a property line and enters onto any 

other premises in excess of the sound pressure levels during the time periods as specified in Table 10-A 

below.  In determining whether a violation of this Section is occurring, the noise and/or noise source shall 

be measured at any point along the property line or within the property line of the receiving or receptor 

premises. 

 

(d) When in any case it is determined that the ambient sound level at the receiving premises 

equals or exceeds the maximum allowable sound pressure level specified in Table 10-A, the ambient 

sound level of the receiving premises is the standard which cannot be exceeded by the subject or 

offending noise. 

 

TABLE 10-A 

Maximum Allowable Noise Levels (in dBA) with Time-of-Day Allowance 

 Receptor Premises 

 Residential Commercial Industrial Public 

Source Premises 7 am-10 pm 10 pm-7 am 7 am-10 pm 10 pm-7 am 7 am-10 pm

 10 pm-7 am 7 am-10 pm 10 pm-7 am 

Residential 55 50 65 60 80 75 75 70 

Commercial 55 [60] 50 [60] 65 60 80 75 75 70 

Industrial 55 [65] 50 [65] 65 60 80 75 75 70 

Public 55 [60] 55 [60] 65 60 80 75 75 70 

NOTE:  The numbers in brackets [ ] are the allowable limits that comply with Exemption (13) below. 

 

10-9-40. Exemptions. 

 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 10-9-30 above, the maximum allowable sound 

pressure levels as set forth in Table 10-A above shall not apply to sounds emitted from: 

 



(1) Any bell or chime from any building clock, school or church, but excluding any 

amplified bell or chime sounds emitted from loudspeakers. 

 

(2) Any siren, whistle, bell or audible warning device lawfully used by an emergency vehicle 

or on construction equipment, or any other alarm system used in case of fire, collision, civil 

defense, police activity or imminent danger; provided, however, that burglar alarms or 

construction equipment alarms or warning devices not terminated within fifteen (15) minutes 

after being activated shall be deemed a nuisance and unlawful. 

 

(3) Any aircraft in flight subject to federal law regarding noise control, and any helicopter in 

the act of landing or taking off at a helipad licensed by the City, so long as the helicopter is not 

landing or taking off in violation of any conditions or restrictions of the helipad's license. 

 

(4) Any ground-based aircraft activity, including testing or engine run-up noise; provided, 

however, that emission of such noise in excess of a sound pressure level of seventy (70) dB(A) 

when measured upon an inhabited residential premises shall be deemed an unlawful nuisance. 

 

(5) Any tree maintenance or lawn care equipment operated upon a residential, commercial, 

industrial or public premises during the time period between 7:00 a.m. and 9:30 p.m.; provided, 

however, that the operation of tree maintenance or lawn care equipment between the hours of 

9:30 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. shall not exceed the maximum sound pressure levels as specified in Table 

10-A above. 

 

(6) Any construction equipment or activities in compliance with Section 10-9-50(3) below. 

 

(7) Any domestic power equipment operated upon any residential, commercial, industrial or 

public premises between 7:00 a.m. and 9:30 p.m.; provided that such equipment does not exceed 

a sound pressure level of eighty (80) dB(A) when measured twenty-five (25) feet from the 

property line of the property on which the equipment is being operated; and further provided that, 

between the hours of 9:30 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., such equipment does not exceed the maximum 

sound pressure levels as specified in Table 10-A above. 

 

(8) Any commercial power equipment operated upon any residential, commercial, industrial 

or public premises between 7:00 a.m. and 9:30 p.m., provided that such equipment does not 

exceed a sound pressure level of eighty-eight (88) dB(A) when measured twenty-five (25) feet 

from the property line of the property on which the equipment is being operated; and further 

provided that between 9:30 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., such equipment does not exceed the maximum 

sound pressure levels as specified in Table 10-A above. 

 

(9) The musical instruments of any school marching band while performing at any sporting 

event or marching band competition, and the musical instruments of any school marching band 

practicing on school grounds that do not exceed sixty-five (65) dB(A) when measured at the 

property line of any receiving residential premises. 

 

(10) Snow removal equipment operated on any premises following a snowstorm between the 

hours of 5:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.; provided that such equipment does not exceed the sound 

pressure limits of eighty-eight (88) dB(A) commercial power equipment, or eighty (80) dB(A) for 

domestic power equipment, when measured at a distance of twenty-five (25) feet from the 

property line of the property on which the equipment is being operated. 

 



(11) Any power generator providing emergency electrical power at any hospital, health clinic, 

nursing home or similar facility where the loss of electrical power poses an immediate risk to the 

health, safety or welfare of any person, or at any premises where such equipment is required by 

the Fire Department.  Additionally, the noise emitted during the routine testing of emergency 

electrical power generators shall not exceed eighty-eight (88) dB(A) at a distance of twenty-five 

(25) feet from the property line for the property on which the generator is operated.  Routine 

testing shall not exceed one (1) hour in any one-week period, or two (2) hours in any six-week 

period, and shall be confined to the hours of 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., or as otherwise approved. 

 

(12) Any industrial, commercial or public premises exceeding the standards of Table 10-A 

above at a receiving residential premises when the zoning classification for the receiving 

residential premises does not allow residential use by right (that is, the residential use is 

nonconforming).  However, in such situation the noise emitted by the industrial, commercial or 

public premises shall not exceed the standards for a receiving industrial, commercial or public 

premises, respectively. 

 

(13) Any industrial, commercial or public premises exceeding the standards of Table 10-A 

above at a receiving residential premises when such industrial, commercial or public premises 

and their emitted noise level were in existence prior to the existence of the residential premises; 

provided, however, that the existing industrial premises does not exceed sixty-five (65) dB(A), 

and the commercial premises do not exceed sixty (60) dB(A), when measured at the receiving 

residential premises. 

 

(14) Any noise specifically authorized by permit duly issued by the City, inclusive of a parade 

permit, and noise created or caused by employees, contractors or agents of the City while 

performing emergency work or activities necessary to address a natural or manmade disaster, 

calamity or emergency.   

 

10-9-50. Prohibited noise activities. 

 

Notwithstanding the sound pressure levels and/or limits permitted in Section 10-9-30 above, the 

following activities are prohibited everywhere in the City: 

 

(1) No person shall at any time sound any horn or other audible signal device of a motor 

vehicle unless it is necessary as a warning to prevent or avoid a traffic accident, or is reasonably 

necessary to inform or warn of a vehicle presence, inclusive of audible back-up safety warning 

devices. 

 

(2)   No person shall operate any trash compacting mechanism on any motor vehicle or on 

any premises, nor shall any person engage in any trash, rubbish or garbage collection activity, 

between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m. when such compacting or collection activity takes 

place on any premises, other than a public premises, adjacent to, or across the street or alley from, 

a residential premises. 

 

(3) No person shall operate any construction equipment, nor conduct any construction 

activities, that exceeds the noise limits of Table 10-A above between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 

7:00 a.m.; provided, however, that the City may grant variances from the construction restrictions 

if it can be demonstrated that a construction project will interfere with traffic if completed during 

daytime hours, or that other extenuating circumstances exist requiring relief from this prohibition; 

and further excepting the operation of municipal street sweeping equipment. 

 



(4) Except for an authorized public address system utilized to announce a sporting or 

recreational event, no noise shall be emitted from any radio, tape/CD player, electronic sound 

system or similar electronic amplified sound reproduction or receiving device on or within any 

public park or recreational area in excess of fifty-five (55) dB(A) unless authorized under a 

permit as obtained under Section 10-9-90 below.   

 

10-9-60. Motor vehicle noise prohibited. 

 

(a) No person shall operate, nor shall the owner permit the operation of, any motor vehicle or 

combination of motor vehicles at any time or place when such operation exceeds the following noise 

sound pressure levels for the category of motor vehicles as specified in Table 10-B below.  The standards 

in Table 10-B shall apply to all noise emitted from a motor vehicle, including any and all equipment 

thereon, and under any condition of acceleration, deceleration, idle, grade or load, and whether or not in 

motion; excepting audible backup safety warning devices. 

 

(b) It is unlawful for any person to drive or move, or for the owner of any motor vehicle to 

permit to be driven or moved, any motor vehicle which is not equipped with an approved exhaust muffler 

satisfying the requirements of this Section; and/or to modify or change an approved exhaust muffler, air 

intake muffler or any other sound-reducing device in such a manner that the noise emitted from the motor 

vehicle exceeds the sound pressure levels as established in Table 10-B below, or is increased above the 

sound pressure level of the vehicle as originally manufactured.  Muffler cutouts, bypasses or other devices 

which increase sound pressure levels or change the original manufactured exhaust system of any motor 

vehicle shall be considered a violation of this Article. 

 

 

TABLE 10-B 

Maximum Allowable Noise Sound Pressure Levels for Motor Vehicles 

Type of Vehicle Time Period Maximum Allowable Sound Pressure Level Measurement Distance 

from Motor Vehicle 

Motor vehicles weighing less than 10,000 lbs., manufacturer's gross vehicle weight (GVWR) At any 

time 80 dB(A) 25 feet 

Motor vehicles weighing 10,000 lbs. or more, manufacturer's gross vehicle weight (GVWR) At any 

time 86 dB(A) 25 feet 

 

10-9-70. Sound level measurements. 

 

Sound level measurements made pursuant to this Article shall be made with a sound level meter 

of standard design using the weighting network/scale.   

 

10-9-80. Sound permits. 

 

(a) A permit to vary or temporarily waive the maximum allowable noise levels as specified 

in this Article may be applied for and obtained from the City for special events or activities, including, 

without limitation, musical performances or other entertainment events, fireworks displays, parades and 

seasonal commercial activities.  Applications for a permit shall be made on approved forms and be 

submitted along with any application fee to the City Clerk not less than five (5) working days prior to the 

date for which the permit is sought.  The application shall be promptly routed by the City Clerk to the 

City's zoning and police officials, who shall forward their comments concerning the same to the City 

Administrator. 

 



(b) The City Administrator may grant or deny a permit application taking into consideration 

the nature and duration of the noise/activity sought to be permitted, the location of the proposed 

noise/activity, the anticipated impact of the proposed noise/activity on surrounding properties and 

neighborhoods, and whether the public health and safety will be injured or served by the issuance of the 

permit.  The City Administrator may also waive the permit application deadline set forth in subsection (a) 

above for good cause shown. 

 

(c) The City Administrator may conduct a public hearing to consider a permit application if 

he or she deems it necessary or appropriate.  Notice of the hearing must be sent to the permit applicant at 

least three (3) days in advance thereof by either telephone, facsimile, electronic mail, regular mail or such 

other method as will likely and timely reach the applicant.  Notice to the public of the hearing shall be 

timely posted at the place or location annually designated by the City Council under Section 24-6-

402(2)(c), C.R.S., as amended. 

 

(d) The City Administrator may prescribe such permit conditions or requirements as he or 

she may deem necessary to minimize the adverse impacts the proposed noise/activity may have upon the 

community or surrounding neighborhood, including, but not limited to, the hours of operation, maximum 

decibels, the type of any sound amplification equipment and the type of sound that may be amplified.  A 

permit granted by the City Administrator under this Article shall contain all conditions upon which the 

permit has been granted and shall specify the locations and times that the permit shall be effective. 

 

(e) An applicant dissatisfied with a decision of the City Administrator may seek an appeal of 

the same to the City Council by submitting a written notice of appeal to the City Clerk within five (5) 

days from the date of the decision sought to be appealed.   

 

10-9-90. Inspections. 

 

(a) For the purpose of determining compliance with the provisions of this Article, the Chief 

of Police or other designated City representative shall be authorized to make inspections of all noise 

sources and to take measurements and tests whenever necessary to determine the volume and character of 

noise.  If any person refuses or restricts entry and free access to any part of a premise, or refuses to allow 

the inspection, testing or noise measurement of any activity, device, facility or motor vehicle where 

inspection is sought, the City official seeking such access and/or testing may petition the Municipal Court 

for a warrant for inspection requiring that such person permit entry and free access to the subject premises 

without interference, restriction or obstruction at a reasonable time for the purpose of inspecting, testing 

or measuring noise.  The Municipal Court shall have power, jurisdiction and authority to enforce all 

orders issued under the provisions of this Article. 

 

(b) It is unlawful for any person to refuse to allow or permit City officials charged with 

enforcing this Article free access to any premises when such official is acting in compliance with a 

warrant or court order issued by the Municipal Court. 

 

(c) It is unlawful for any person to violate the provisions of any warrant or court order 

requiring inspection, testing or measurement of noise or noise sources. 

 

(d) No person shall hinder, obstruct, delay, resist, prevent in any way, interfere or attempt to 

interfere with any City official performing his or her duties under this Article. 

 

10-9-100. Penalties. 

 



Violations of this Article shall be punishable in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 1, 

Article IV of this Code.  Additionally, violations of this Article are hereby deemed and declared to be 

public nuisances and may be abated by injunction or such other remedy as provided by law or equity. 

   

ARTICLE X 

Miscellaneous Offenses 

10-10-10. Fireworks. 

 

It is unlawful for any person to offer for sale, expose for sale, sell, lend, give away, set fire to, 

discharge, use, explode or have in his or her possession with intent to offer for sale or use or to explode, 

any fireworks within the City.  Commercial fireworks displays meeting the regulations of the adopted fire 

code are permitted.  As used in this Section, fireworks means any article, device or substance prepared for 

the primary purpose of producing a visual or auditory sensation by combustion, explosion, deflagration or 

detonation, including without limitation, the following articles and devices commonly known and used as 

fireworks:  toy cannons or toy canes in which explosives are used; blank cartridges; the type of balloon 

which requires fire underneath to propel the same; firecrackers, torpedoes, sky rockets, rockets, Roman 

candles, Day-Glo bombs or torches; or other fireworks of light construction and any fireworks containing 

any explosive or flammable compound or any tablet or other device containing any explosive substance.  

Fireworks does not mean  toy paper caps which do not contain more than twenty-five hundredths (.25) of 

a gram of explosive compound per cap; sparklers, trick matches, cigarette loads, trick noisemakers, toy 

smoke devices or novelty auto alarms; or highway flares, railway fuses, ship distress signals, smoke 

candles and other emergency signal devices. 

 

10-10-20. Posting handbills, posters and placards. 

 

Any bill, poster, placard or advertisement of any description upon any public or private house, 

store or other building or tenement, or upon any fence, sidewalk power pole, telephone pole or other 

structure without permission from the owner or occupant thereof shall be deemed a nuisance and may be 

abated as provided in this Chapter.   

 

10-10-30. Water on public ways. 

 

 It is unlawful for any person owning or controlling any hydrant, a line of hose therefrom, or any 

sprinkling or spraying device to permit water to flow or be thrown therefrom onto any sidewalk, street or 

alley. 

 













sufficient barricade or temporary fence around such hole, drain, ditch or other excavation, in order to 

prevent persons, animals and vehicles from sustaining injury or damage.  The barricade shall be retro-

reflective.  All excavations in the public right-of-way shall use proper signage according to the current 

Manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices standards.   

 

11-3-70. Interference with safety devices. 

 

It shall be unlawful to damage, displace, remove or interfere with any safety device which is 

lawfully placed around or about any street, alley, sidewalk or other excavation or construction work in the 

City.   

 

11-3-80. Cuts; disposal of excess material. 

 

Any cut in any pavement or surfacing shall be made in a neat manner, with square edges and 

corners, and shall be made with a pavement saw twelve (12) inches back from each side of the 

excavation.  All excess material taken from the cut and excavation shall be trucked away and disposed of 

by the holder of the permit at the time the cut and excavation are made.   

 

11-3-90. Backfilling, compaction and materials. 

 

Upon completion of the work, each excavator shall backfill excavations as required herein.  

Backfill, compaction and materials of any excavation made in any paved street or alley right-of-way shall 

conform to the conditions set out in the Specifications. 

 

11-3-100. Responsibility for repair. 

 

In the event of settlement or subsidence of a particular excavation or part of an excavation, the 

permittee who had performed the excavation work shall be responsible for all repaving and repair costs 

occasioned by such settlement or subsidence, as outlined within Specifications.   

 

11-3-110. Pavement or surfacing replacement. 

 

(a) After an excavation in a street, alley or sidewalk, pavement and surfacing shall be 

replaced by the contractor in accordance with specifications provided within the Specifications. 

 

(b) If within the time specified in this Article the work is not completed, the City will cause 

the work to be done and bill the contractor responsible.   

 

11-3-120. Backfilling under paved or hard-surfaced streets. 

 

Excavators in paved or hard-surfaced streets shall take care to separate surfacing material from 

the soil removed from such excavation.  All excavated material shall be removed and Class 6 road base 

material installed as backfill.   
 
11-3-130. Obstruction of excavations prohibited. 
 

It shall be unlawful to hinder or obstruct any paving operations or excavations conducted in 

conformance with the provisions of this Article.   

 

11-3-140. Liability. 

 



Any person who undertakes work pursuant to a permit issued under the provisions of this Article 

or performs work under contract with the City or by permission obtained from the City Council in 

accordance with provisions adopted by the City Council shall be answerable for any damage occasioned 

to persons, animals or property by reason of carelessness or negligence connected with such work.   

 

11-3-150. Furnishing of information. 

 

It shall be the duty of every person, on request, to furnish the Public Works Director with 

information regarding the location in any street, alley, sidewalk or other public place of the City of any 

pipe or other structure installed, maintained or utilized by such person. 

 

11-3-160. Violations and remedies. 

 

(a) Any person who digs up, opens or excavates, or causes to be dug up, opened or excavated 

any public right-of-way owned by the City without a permit from the Public Works Director 

misdemeanor shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be subject to the 

provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code.  

 

(b) Any person who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, refuses to comply with or resists any 

of the provisions of this Article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 

subject to the provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code.   

 

(c) In addition to the remedies described in subsections (a) and (b), the City shall be entitled 

to pursue any other civil or criminal remedy available at law to enforce the provisions of this Chapter. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

Encroachments 

 

11-4-10.  Uses prohibited without encroachment permit. 

 

(a)  No person shall conduct any activity or enterprise that involves placement of a cart, 

unrolled blank booth, sign, table, structural improvement associated with landscaping, stage or other 

structure or equipment in the public right-of-way without a valid encroachment permit issued under this 

Article, unless specifically permitted and provided for in this Code. 

 

(b)  No person shall install or construct any structure, awning, sign, balcony, occupied 

colonnade or stoop over or upon the public right-of-way without a valid encroachment permit issued 

under this Article. 

 

(c)  Landscaping within the public right-of-way shall not be a violation of this Article; 

provided, however, that no vested right to continue such landscaping shall arise and said landscaping shall 

comply with other requirements and provisions of this Code. 

 

(d)  The penalty for failing to comply with this Article shall be as set forth in Chapter 1, 

Article IV of this Code. 

 

11-4-20. Encroachment permit required.  

 

(a)  Any person who wishes to encroach over or upon the public right-of-way shall apply for 

and obtain an encroachment permit from the City Administrator according to the application process 

established by the City Administrator.  Encroachment permits shall be revocable and may be subject to a 



term as determined by the City Administrator to ensure that the encroachment remains appropriate for its 

setting and compliant with the terms of the permit. Encroachment permits shall provide, and it shall be 

agreed by the person requesting the permit, that any such improvements which either exist upon or are 

placed upon City property shall be placed there at the sufferance of the City and shall be removed by the 

property owner responsible for the improvements upon receipt of a written notice from the City to remove 

the improvements in the time frame set forth in the notice. All encroachments shall comply with all 

building codes as applicable, and permits shall contain such restrictions as the City Administrator deems 

appropriate. All encroachment permits shall be kept on the premises.  

 

(b)  The City Administrator may establish review guidelines and application submittal 

requirements and may also impose conditions on any permit to ensure that permitted encroachments 

comply with this Code and enhance the proposed location.  

 

(c) The City Administrator shall impose a reasonable fee for an application for an 

encroachment permit to cover the City's costs associated with processing and monitoring such permit, 

including, which fee may be amended from time to time.  In addition, the applicant shall be responsible 

for the payment of any and all consultant fees associated with processing the permit. 

 

(d)  Once an application is deemed complete, the City Administrator shall render a decision 

on the permit application within fifteen (15) business days unless the City Administrator, at his or her 

discretion, refers the application to the City Council; in which case, the application shall be placed on the 

next available agenda.  

 

(e)  Whenever any permittee desires to change the use or location of the encroachment 

authorized by the permit, the permittee shall follow the review and approval process required of a new 

applicant.  

 

11-4-30.  Mandatory insurance.  

 
(a)  All permittees shall provide proof of adequate insurance to the City Administrator before 

a permit may be issued and shall maintain during the period of the permit comprehensive general public 

liability and property damage insurance naming the City, its officers, employees and agents as insureds in 

an amount equal to the limits under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, Section 24-10-101, et 

seq., C.R.S., as amended, plus the costs of defense, provided that the insurance is primary insurance and 

that no other insurance maintained by the City will be called upon to contribute to loss covered by the 

policy and providing for thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation or material change to the City.   

 

(b)  The City Administrator may waive the mandatory insurance requirement for 

encroachments of a minor nature or short duration of time.  

 

(c)  The City Administrator has discretion to increase insurance limits for major 

encroachments.  

 

11-4-40.  Indemnification.  

The holder of an encroachment permit issued under this Article shall indemnify and hold 

harmless the City, its officers, employees and agents against any and all claims arising from any 

occurrence occasioned by the permitted use. 

 

11-4-50. Ramps in downtown area. 

 



(a) Encroachment permits under this Article for the installation of an access ramp may be 

issued according to the encroachment permit procedure established herein upon the following public ways 

within the City of Salida:  Sackett Avenue, First Street, Second Street, Third Street and Fourth Street 

from "I" Street to "D" Street; Fourth Street from "H" Street to "D" Street; "E" Street, "F" Street and "G" 

Street from Fourth Street to the northerly most extension of said streets; "H" Street from Fourth Street to 

Third Street; and "I" Street from Second Street to Sackett Avenue. 

 

(b) Within the area above described and under the terms and conditions as set forth in this 

Article, the City Administrator is authorized to issue the owner of any building housing a place of public 

accommodation, as defined in Section 24-34-601, C.R.S., a permit to install and maintain an access ramp 

upon the public way.  All permits so issued will be cancelable by the City upon sixty (60) days' notice. 

 

(c) Installation.  The permit to install an access ramp will be for an area upon the public way 

no larger than the following:  forty four (44) inches from the frontage of the property into the public way 

and the frontage of the property along the public way.  Any access ramp constructed pursuant to a permit 

issued under this Section shall comply with the International Building Code as adopted at Chapter 18 of 

this Code.  

 

(d) Issuance of ramp encroachment permit. 

 

(1) An encroachment permit for an access ramp may be issued by the City Administrator as 

established herein if the requirements of this Section are met and the applicant demonstrates that 

the issuance of the permit will not unduly impede the course of vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic 

on the public way and that there is no practicable way to install an access ramp to the place of 

public accommodation by installing the ramp upon the property owned by the building owner. 

 

(2) In determining whether the issuance of the permit and construction of the ramp will 

unduly impede traffic, the City Administrator shall take into account the following:  the width of 

the parkway as defined in this Article; the width of the paved area of the parkway (commonly 

called the sidewalk); other obstructions on the public way in the immediate vicinity of the ramp; 

and the amount of vehicular and pedestrian traffic.  The City Administrator shall not issue a 

permit if he or she determines that issuance of the permit would require pedestrian traffic to move 

onto the street or onto unpaved areas of the parkway. 

 

ARTICLE V 

Trees 

 

11-5-10.  Tree regulations generally. 

 

 (a) Sizes.  The following tree size classifications shall apply in the City: 

 

 Small trees Up to 25' projected height at maturity 

 Medium trees 25   40' projected height at maturity 

 Large trees Over 40' projected height at maturity 

 

 (b) Species.  Prohibited nuisance tree species on private and public property are described at 

Chapter 7, Article IV of this Code. 

 

(c) Spacing.  The spacing of trees will be in accordance with the tree species size classes, and 

no trees may be planted closer together than the following: 

 



 Small trees 20' 

 Medium trees 30' 

 Large trees 40' 

 

 (d) Distance from curbs, sidewalks, and corners.  The distance that trees may be planted from 

curbs or curb lines and sidewalks will be in accordance with the three (3) size classes, and no trees may 

be planted closer to any curb or sidewalk than the following: 

 

 Small trees 2' 

 Medium trees 3' 

 Large trees 4' 

 

No tree shall be planted within the clear sight triangle as defined in Chapter 16 of this Code.  No tree shall 

be planted closer than ten (10) feet from any fireplug. 

 

 (e) Distance from utilities.  No trees other than those species described as small trees may be 

planted under or within ten (10) lateral feet of any overhead utility wire, or over or within five (5) lateral 

feet of any underground water or wastewater line, transmission line, or other utility.   

 

11-5-20. Trees and limbs in public right-of-way. 

 

(a) The owner of any tree overhanging any street or right-of-way within the City shall trim 

the branches so that such branches shall not obstruct the light from any street lamp or obstruct the view of 

any street intersection or traffic signs, and so that there shall be a clear space of ten (10) feet above the 

surface of the street or right-of-way.  Said owner shall remove all dead, diseased or dangerous trees or 

broken or decayed limbs which constitute a menace to the safety of the public.   

 

(b) Any licensed tree service wanting to prune, treat or remove a City tree and any City 

resident wanting to prune, treat or remove a City tree adjacent to his or her property must first obtain a 

free permit from the Department of Public Works and is required to adhere to the Tree Pruning and Tree 

Removal Specifications.   

 

11-5-30. Tree care responsibilities. 

 

(a) Responsibility of City. 

 

(1) The City has the primary responsibility to plan, trim, spray, preserve, remove and replace 

park and street trees as may be necessary to ensure safety or to preserve the symmetry and beauty 

of such public grounds. 

 

(2) The City may remove or cause or order to be removed any tree or part thereof which 

constitutes a hazard to life and property, is injurious to sewers, electric power lines, gas lines, 

water lines or other public improvements, or harbors insects or disease which constitute a 

potential threat to other trees within the City.  If removal of a private tree is to be ordered, the 

City shall notify the owner of such trees in writing.  Treatment or removal shall be completed at 

the expense of the owner within fifteen (15) days after the date of service of the notice.  If the 

owner fails to complete treatment or removal as ordered, the City may treat or remove such trees 

and charge the cost of treatment or removal to the owner. 

 



(3) The City Council shall have the right to review the conduct, acts and decisions of the 

Tree Board.  Any person may appeal any decision of the Tree Board to the City Council, which 

may hear the matter and make a final decision. 

 

(b) Responsibility of landowners. 

 

(1) Landowners are responsible for minor maintenance of street trees adjacent to their lots.  

This includes, but is not limited to, watering, fertilizing and mulching. 

 

(2) Landowners may trim, treat, remove or replace street trees adjacent to their lots, provided 

that they first obtain a free permit from the City.   

 

11-5-40. Interference with City or Tree Board. 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person to prevent, delay or interfere with the City, or any of its agents 

or servants, while engaging in and about the planting, cultivating, mulching, pruning, spraying or 

removing of any street, park, or private tree as authorized in this Chapter.   

 

11-5-50. Violation. 

 

Any person who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, refuses to comply with or resists any of the 

provisions of this Article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be subject to 

the provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code.   It shall be unlawful to damage or otherwise destroy 

any park or street tree.  Upon conviction or plea of guilty, the individual will be charged the costs of 

repairing or replacement of said tree.   

 

ARTICLE VI 

Parks and Recreation Areas 

 

11-6-10. Private use of City parks. 

 

(a) Approval required.  No private person shall promote, conduct or organize any meeting or 

performance within a City park without the prior approval of the City.  No such person or organization 

shall participate in any performance within a City park without the prior approval of the City Council. 

 

(b) City policy, guidelines for granting use.  It is the intent of the City Council that 

permission to use parks shall be granted to private persons without regard to race, creed or purpose of the 

private person desiring to use the park.  Nevertheless the City Council realizes that it must exercise some 

discretion in permitting persons to use City parks, and enacts the following guidelines to help determine 

whether permission should be granted to a private person to use a City park, or a portion thereof, for a 

meeting or performance: 

 

(1) Whether the private person has used City parks for meetings or performances in the past; 

and whether such person has complied with this Article and other ordinances of the City in the 

past; and whether such person has caused litter or police problems. 

 

(2) A scheduling system for the use of the parks during the time in question, the City Council 

wishing not to create conflicting uses of the same park or to have the parks excessively used for 

performances or meetings. 

 



(3) The purpose of the meeting or nature of the performance; provided that no meeting or 

performance shall be prohibited on the basis of its political or religious content or purpose. 

 

(c) Conditions of use.  The City may grant private persons permission to use City parks, or 

portions thereof, for meetings or performances upon the following terms and conditions as subject to the 

following limitations: 

 

(1) Each permission given shall be limited to four (4) consecutive days. 

 

(2) Each permission given shall specify which area of which park shall be used and during 

what time the area will be used. 

 

(3) Unless the use of amplified sound after 10:00 pm is specifically permitted, amplified 

sound after such hour is prohibited. 

 

(4) The City Council may impose a fee for the use of any park and shall adopt a fee schedule 

by resolution.   

 

(d) Bond requirement.  The City Council may impose the requirement upon a person that a 

bond be posted prior to the use of the park, such bond to be in an amount sufficient to cover costs of 

cleanup and/or possible damage to the park caused by the performance or meeting. 

 

(e) Prohibited acts. 

 

(1) Damage to park property.  No private person using a City park for a meeting or 

performance shall damage or deface the foliage, furniture or improvements within the park in any 

way, shape or form. 

 

(2) Interfering with private activities.  No private person shall in any way interfere with, 

obstruct or interrupt any performance or meeting within a City park for which the City Council 

has given permission.   

 

(3) The consumption of alcoholic beverages, as defined in Section 10-7-10 of this Code is 

prohibited unless a special exception is obtained pursuant to Section 10-7-40 of this Code. 

 

(f) Tiered review.  The City Administrator shall review and act on applications for City park 

events unless the scope of the proposed event includes street closures, alcohol use, multiple days, or any 

other factors which in the City Administrator’s sole discretion indicate a higher level of impact to the park 

facility requiring review and approval by the City Council. 

 

11-6-20. Camping overnight. 

 

(a) Prohibited generally.  No person shall camp overnight within or upon any City park 

without prior permission of the City Council.  Any person found sleeping within a City park between 

10:00 p.m. and sunrise shall be presumed to be camping within the City park contrary to this Article. 

 

(b) Permission to camp.  By resolution, the City Council may grant an individual or group of 

individuals permission to camp within a City park.  The resolution shall specify the group, park and days 

during which the camping is allowed.  In any prosecution for a violation of this Section, the burden shall 

be on the defendant to demonstrate that he or she had permission by resolution of the City Council. 

 



11-6-30. Marvin Park. 

 

(a) As used herein, the term Marvin Park shall mean all of that City park located between the 

Arkansas River and Highway 291 (First Street) within the City, which is commonly known as Marvin 

Park. 

 

(b) Persons desiring to use Marvin Park for organized events shall make application for use 

to the City Administrator in such form as the City Administrator may require. 

 

(c) The City Administrator shall grant permission for the use of Marvin Park only to persons 

who meet the following requirements: 

 

(1) The person must have and demonstrate liability insurance, protecting all participants in 

the activity for which the park is to be used and all spectators from bodily injury or property 

damage, in an amount to be determined by resolution of the City Council. 

 

(2) The person must pay a user fee for use of the park in an amount to be determined by 

resolution of the City Council. 

 

(e) In the event that the use of Marvin Park is for an athletic event or performance which 

draws an audience, the persons promoting or participating in the athletic event or performance shall be 

deemed the users of the park and shall be required to obtain permission.  The audience, whether invited or 

drawn by nature of the athletic event or performance, shall not be deemed users of the park and shall not 

be required to obtain permission to be in Marvin Park.   

 

11-6-40. Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center. 

 

(a) With respect to minor persons who are in the Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center without 

their parents or legal guardians, the City Administrator shall exercise such authority with respect to 

discipline over said minor persons as a parent may lawfully exercise over his or her children. 

 

(b) The City Administrator may promulgate such rules and regulations relating to the 

behavior of persons within the Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center as he or she deems necessary and 

proper to ensure the safety and well-being of persons within the pool and to ensure the well-being and 

maintenance of pool facilities. 

 

(c) All persons using the Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center shall obey all directions given 

by the City Administrator and particularly shall strictly adhere to the directions given by lifeguards at the 

pool. 

 

(d) In the event the City Administrator determines that any person has consistently or 

willfully disobeyed the instructions given by lifeguards or swimming pool personnel, the City 

Administrator may prohibit said person from using the Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center for a certain 

time.  Such prohibition shall be delivered to the person orally and if the person is a minor, the prohibition 

will be placed in writing and delivered to the minor's parent or legal guardian if the same can be 

ascertained using reasonable diligence.  Any person so prohibited from using the Salida Hot Springs 

Aquatic Center may appeal the decision of the City Administrator to the City Council by filing a request 

for a hearing and notice of appeal with the City Clerk within ten (10) days after notification of the 

prohibition.  In the case where notice of the prohibition is mailed, the prohibition shall be deemed 

delivered upon being placed in the United States mail with sufficient postage prepaid, first class mail.  

After the filing of a notice of appeal, the matter will come before the City Council for a determination at 



the next regular meeting of the City Council or at such time thereafter as the City Council may continue 

the same.   

 

(e) Liquor possession or consumption at swimming pool and penalty.  It is unlawful for any 

person to have in his or her possession, or to consume, any alcohol beverage or other intoxicant within the 

Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center, or for any person to be within the Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center 

who is impaired by alcohol or other drugs, or a combination thereof, as defined in Section 42-4-1301, 

C.R.S., as amended.  The minimum penalty imposed upon any person convicted of a violation hereof 

shall be twenty-five ($25.00) dollars, and the maximum penalty shall be the maximum penalty as set forth 

in Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code. 

 

(f) It is unlawful for any person to possess any glass container within the Salida Hot Springs 

Aquatic Center, or to transport any glass container into the Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center.  This 

subparagraph shall not apply to City employees who have glass containers in their possession within the 

Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center used in the performance of their duties as employees. 

 

11-6-50. Skateboard Park. 

 

(a) The provisions of this Section relate to the Salida Skateboard Park, which is located on 

the former right-of-way of the Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad, Monarch Branch, between the 

Monarch Spur Trail, 1st Street, Sackett Street and "G" Street, and which consists of the Southerly one-

half (½) of the portion of the former right-of-way above described. 

 

(b) The prohibitions against the use of skating devices contained in Section 8-2-40 of this 

Code shall not apply to the Salida Skating Park. 

 

(c) The use of the Salida Skating Park is a privilege and not a right.  Persons who abuse that 

privilege by violating the regulations set forth in this Section may have their privilege of using the Salida 

Skating Park suspended. 

 

(d) No person shall perform any of the following actions upon or within the Salida Skating 

Park: 

 

(1) Be upon the premises of the same between the time of sixty (60) minutes after sunset and 

thirty (30) minutes before sunrise unless such person is performing maintenance upon the same at 

the direction and with the authorization of the City. 

 

(2) Use the same for skating purposes without proper helmets, knee and elbow pads, and 

shoes. 

 

(3) Use the same for skating purposes when the person's skating equipment and protective 

gear are not in good working order. 

 

(4) Bring any food or beverages onto the skating surfaces of the same. 

 

(5) Use or install upon the same any make-shift items or modifications of a temporary or 

permanent nature.  This prohibition shall not apply to modifications made by the City. 

 

(6) Be in the skating bowl at the same time another person is using the same for skating 

purposes. 

 



(e) Persons use the Salida Skating Park at their own risk.  The Public Works Department 

shall post a sign at the Salida Skating Park advising persons that they use the same at their own risk and 

listing the prohibitions in subsection (d) above.   

 

11-6-60. City parks closed during nighttime hours. 

 

(a) The provisions of this Section apply to all City parks within the City, except for the 

following facilities under the following circumstances:  the Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center during the 

times it is open to the public by the pool administration and those portions of Marvin Park being used for 

an athletic event which has been regularly scheduled and approved by the City. 

 

(b) It is unlawful for any person to be within any City park, except Marvin Park and 

Centennial Park, between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., except City employees who are acting in 

the course of their regular duties and employment.  The hours of closure for Centennial Park and Marvin 

Park shall be between 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

 

(c) The Public Works Director shall post signs in all parks in conspicuous places advising 

that the parks are closed to all persons between the hours designated in subsection (b) above. 

 

(d) For the purposes of this Section, the boundary of a park shall be deemed to extend to the 

edge of any adjoining road or street and shall be deemed to extend to the bank (at low-water mark) of the 

Arkansas River where the park adjoins the Arkansas River.  This Section shall not apply to the Salida 

Trail, which runs along the abandoned railroad right-of-way (Denver & Rio Grande Western Railroad, 

Monarch Branch); and nothing contained in this Section shall prohibit persons from traveling along paved 

sidewalks within parks, provided that said persons are traveling and not loitering. 

 

(e) Any person who commits an unlawful act as defined in this Section, upon conviction 

thereof by the Municipal Court, shall be punished as set forth in Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code.   

 

11-6-70. Prohibited acts and conditions. 

 

(a) Dogs in park. 

 

(1) It is unlawful for any person who owns, harbors or keeps a dog to permit that dog to enter 

any City park, except areas specifically identified as "dogs permitted" or by motion of the City 

Council for special events. 

 

(2) The Public Works Director shall post all City parks with clear, legible signs reading "No 

Dogs Allowed," which signs shall be posted in such a manner as to give all persons entering the 

parks notice that dogs are not permitted therein. 

 

(b) Glass containers.  It is unlawful for any person to possess any glass container within any 

City park or to transport any glass container into a City park.   

 

(c) Any person who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, refuses to comply with or resists any 

of the provisions of this Article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 

subject to the provisions of Chapter 1, Article IV of this Code.   

 

ARTICLE VII 

SteamPlant Event Center and Scout Hut 

 



11-7-10. General provisions. 

 

 The City is the owner of the SteamPlant Event Center.  The rules and regulations for parks and 

recreation areas set forth in Article VI of this Chapter shall not apply to SteamPlant.  Events held at the 

SteamPlant are exempt from amplified sound requirements of Chapter 10, Article IX of this Code. 

 

11-7-20. Rules and regulations. 
 

(a) The City Administrator may promulgate such rules and regulations relating to the 

behavior of persons within the SteamPlant Event Center as he or she deems necessary and proper to 

ensure the safety and well-being of persons within the facility and to ensure the well-being and 

maintenance of the SteamPlant Event Center. 

 

(b) All persons using the SteamPlant Event Center shall obey all directions given by the City 

Administrator and particularly shall strictly adhere to the directions given by SteamPlant Event Center 

staff. 

 

(c) All persons using the SteamPlant Event Center shall adhere to the guidelines provided for 

in the SteamPlant User Agreement adopted by the City Council, as may be amended. 

 

(d) All alcoholic beverage services are provided through the SteamPlant Event Center. Any 

person consuming alcoholic beverages must be 21 years or older. The SteamPlant Event Center reserves 

the right to suspend alcohol privileges of the SteamPlant Event Center users at any time for any reason. 

Should illegal presence or consumption of alcoholic beverages occur on the SteamPlant Event Center 

premises by a user or guests, the full amount of the damage deposit will be forfeited to the SteamPlant 

Event Center for violation of state and local liquor laws.  All sales and service of alcohol are provided by 

the SteamPlant Event Center under its liquor license. 

 

(e) The City reserves the right to eject or cause to be ejected from the SteamPlant Event 

Center any objectionable person or persons, and neither the City nor any of its officers, agents, or 

employees shall be liable for any damages that may be sustained through the exercise by the City of such 

right. 

 

11-7-30. Scout Hut. 

 

The City is the owner of the Scout Hut, which facility is under the management of the SteamPlant 

Event Center staff.  The City Administrator may promulgate such rules and regulations relating to the 

behavior of persons using the Scout Hut as he or she deems necessary and proper to ensure the safety and 

well-being of persons within the facility and to ensure the well-being and maintenance of the Scout Hut. 

To the extent applicable, the provisions of Section 11-7-20 shall also apply to use of the Scout Hut. 

 

 

 

 

 



    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

 
    
MEETING DATE:  January 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Commercial Property Lease
    Ordinance

Salida
Rockies Chamber of Commerce

 
PRESENTED BY:  Dara MacDonald
 
REQUEST: 

 
The request is to pass an ordinance
Chamber of Commerce at their curr
occupies this location.  The City covers the expenses for utilities and insurance with the exception of 
electricity and phone service.  
 
Following discussions with John Engel
agreement.  The lease is currently being reviewed by the chamber board.
  
 
Action:  
 
A Council person should make a motion to approve
Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, approving a commercial lease 
Chamber of Commerce, setting the public hearing date for 
ordinance to be published in full.” 
 
Followed by a second and a roll call vote

 
 

ITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM  

January 17, 2012  

Commercial Property Lease Agreement  
Ordinance 2012- 02 an ordinance of the City Council of the 
Salida, Colorado, approving a commercial lease with Heart of the 
Rockies Chamber of Commerce. 

Dara MacDonald, Community Development Director

ordinance approving a 20-year lease with the Heart of the Rockies 
Chamber of Commerce at their current location in Centennial Park.  The chamber currently 
occupies this location.  The City covers the expenses for utilities and insurance with the exception of 

Engelbrecht, Executive Director, the City attorney drafted the lease 
agreement.  The lease is currently being reviewed by the chamber board. 

A Council person should make a motion to approve “Ordinance 2012-02 an ordinance of the City 
, Colorado, approving a commercial lease with Heart of the Rockies 

setting the public hearing date for February 7, 2012, and ordering the 
”  

roll call vote. 

 ___ 

of the City Council of the City of 
with Heart of the 

Community Development Director 

year lease with the Heart of the Rockies 
The chamber currently 

occupies this location.  The City covers the expenses for utilities and insurance with the exception of 

the City attorney drafted the lease 

an ordinance of the City 
with Heart of the Rockies 

, and ordering the 

  



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 2 

(Series of 2012) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

APPROVING A COMMERCIAL PROPERTY LEASE WITH THE HEART OF THE 

ROCKIES CHAMBER OF COMMERCE.   

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Salida is the owner of certain real property known as the Salida 

Museum located at 406 West Highway 50 in the City of Salida (the “Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, The Heart of the Rockies Chamber of Commerce (the “Chamber”) desires 

to lease the Property from the City through December 31, 2032; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Salida City Council is willing to lease the Property to the Chamber 

subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Commercial Property Lease for the Property 

attached as Exhibit A. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALIDA, COLORADO THAT:  

 

1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.  

 

2. The City Council hereby approves the Commercial Property Lease with The 

Heart of the Rockies Chamber of Commerce attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 

herein by this reference and authorizes the Mayor and the Deputy City Clerk to execute the 

Agreement on behalf of the City.   

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, ADOPTED and ORDERED PUBLISHED IN 

FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City Council on the 17
th

 

day of January, 2012 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 7
th

 day of February, 

2012. 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on the 7
th

 day of February, 2012. 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Salida, Colorado 

Ordinance No. 2, Series of 2012 

Page 2 of 2 

 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ___ day of 

________, 2012, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the _____day of __________, 

2012. 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

1 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY LEASE 

 

 This LEASE is made and entered into on the date set forth below, by and between the 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, a Colorado municipal corporation whose address is 448 East 

1
st
 Street, Suite 112, Salida, CO 81201 (the “Lessor”), and THE HEART OF THE ROCKIES 

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, a Colorado non-profit corporation whose address is 406 West 

Highway 50, Salida, CO 81201 (“Lessee”). 

 

 W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessor owns the building and surrounding real property known as the Salida 

Chamber and located at 406 West Highway 50 in the City of Salida (the “Premises”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessee has occupied the Premises without a formal lease agreement; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Lessee desires to continue to lease the Premises from Lessor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the parties desire to set forth the terms and conditions of the Lease of the 

Premises.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

contained herein, the adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

 

 1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated by this 

reference. 

 

 2. Term of Lease.  The term of the Lease shall be effective from January 1, 2012 to 

December 31, 2032 (the “Term”), or on such earlier date as this Lease may terminate as provided 

below. 

 

  Either party may terminate this lease agreement for any reason upon 180 days written 

notice to the non-terminating party. 

 

 3. Rent.   Lessee shall not be required to pay rent provided the Premises are used for 

the purposes described below.  

 

 

 4. Use and Occupancy.  Lessee shall use and occupy the Premises for the operation 

of The Heart of the Rockies Chamber of Commerce offices and visitor center and for no other 

purpose; provided, however, Lessee may rent and sublease a portion of the Premises to a third 

party as set forth in Section 12 below.  Lessor represents that the Premises may lawfully be used 

for this purpose.  

 

  



 

2 

 

 5. Place for Payment of Rent.  Lessee shall pay rent, and any additional rent as 

provided below, to Lessor at Lessor's above-stated address, or at such other place as Lessor may 

designate in writing, without demand and without counterclaim, deduction, or setoff. 

 

 6. Care and Repair of Premises.    Lessee shall commit no act of waste and shall 

maintain in good condition at its own cost and expense the Premises and all fixtures and 

appurtenances.  Lessee shall, in the use and occupancy of the Premises, conform to all laws, 

orders, and regulations of the federal, state, and municipal governments or any of their 

departments.  Lessee shall make all necessary repairs, modifications, and replacements to the 

Premises and all fixtures and appurtenances within a reasonable time and shall at all times 

maintain the Premises in good working order.   

  

 Lessee shall maintain and keep in good condition and repair the interior and exterior of 

the improvements situate on the Premises against ordinary wear and tear.  Lessee shall keep and 

maintain all sidewalks and drives adjacent to the Premises in a neat, clean and sanitary condition 

and reasonably free of litter, dirt, debris, obstructions, ice and snow.  Lessor shall make 

reasonable structural repairs to the Premises in a reasonable amount of time following notice 

from Lessee of the need for such repairs. 

  

 All improvements made by Lessee which are so attached to the Premises that they cannot 

be removed without material injury to the Premises shall become the property of Lessor upon 

installation. 

 

 No later than the last day of the term Lessee shall, at Lessee's expense, remove all of 

Lessee's personal property and those improvements made by Lessee which have not become the 

property of Lessor.  Lessee shall also repair all injury done by or in connection with the 

installation or removal of the property and improvements, and surrender the Premises in as good 

condition as it was at the beginning of the term, reasonable wear, and damage by fire, the 

elements, casualty, or other cause not due to the misuse or neglect by Lessee or Lessee's agents, 

servants, visitors or licensees, excepted. All property of Lessee remaining on the Premises after 

the Term shall be conclusively deemed abandoned and may be removed by Lessor, and Lessee 

shall reimburse Lessor for the cost of such removal. Lessor may have any such property stored at 

Lessee's risk and expense. 

  

 7. Alterations, Additions or Improvements.  Lessee shall not, without first obtaining 

the written consent of Lessor, make any alterations, additions or improvements in, to or about the 

Premises.  Lessor has the right to make improvements to the Property so long as those 

improvements do not conflict with the operation of the offices and visitor center as it has been 

historically operated, unless Lessee consents to such conflict. 

 

 8. Prohibition Against Activities Increasing Fire Insurance Rates.  Lessee shall not 

do or suffer anything to be done on the Premises which will cause an increase in the rate of fire 

insurance for the Premises. 

 



 

3 

 9. Accumulation of Waste or Refuse Matter.  Lessee shall not permit the 

accumulation of waste or refuse matter on the Premises or anywhere in or near the Premises. 

 

 10. Abandonment.  Lessee shall not, without first obtaining the written consent of the 

Lessor, abandon the Premises, or allow the Premises to become vacant or deserted. 

 

 11. Assignment and Sublease.   Lessee shall not assign, mortgage, pledge, or 

encumber this lease, in whole or in part, or sublet the Premises or any part of such Premises, 

except as provided for in this Section.  Lessee may assign this Lease to any entity wholly owned 

and controlled by Lessee upon notice to Lessor of such assignment.  Lessee may sublease and 

rent a portion or portions of the Premises to a third party so long as Lessee’s insurance fully 

covers the intended use of the Premises, the sublease expressly states that it is subordinate and 

subject to this Lease, specifically the termination clauses, and Lessor approves the sublease and 

tenant, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The sublease must contain a 

prohibition of any items placed in the windows other than traditional non-symbolic window 

coverings.  This covenant shall be binding upon the legal representatives of Lessee, and upon 

every person to whom Lessee's interest under this Lease passes by operation of law. 

 

 12. Utilities.  Lessee shall be responsible for and pay the cost of the following utilities 

provided to the Premises:  electric, phone service and trash removal.  Lessor shall pay natural 

gas, water and sewer.  All other utilities or services attributable to periods during the Term of 

this Lease shall be the responsibility of the Lessee. 

 

 13. Insurance.  Lessee shall hold Lessor harmless from, and indemnify and defend 

Lessor against any damages, liability or claims arising out of or incident to the use of the 

Premises by Lessee, its customers, invitees, licensees, sublessees, subcontractors or employee.  

Lessee shall defend any litigation at its own cost and expense which may be brought against 

Lessor or Lessee, arising out of the Lessee’s use of the Premises.  The parties acknowledge that 

the City maintains at its expense a Property and Crime Coverage Policy on the Premises with the 

Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (“CIRSA”). 

 

 In furtherance hereof, Lessee shall provide the following additional insurance coverage. 

 

  (a) Liability Coverage. Lessee shall also provide public liability insurance in 

connection with the utilization of the Premises and the operation of Lessee’s business conducted 

on the Premises with appropriate endorsements with single limit liability coverage of at least One 

Million Dollars ($1,000,000) and shall name Lessor as an additional "named insured" 

thereunder. Such liability insurance coverage may be increased from time to time in order to 

keep pace with inflation and increases in the cost of living. In the event a disagreement should 

arise between Lessor and Lessee as to what increases are appropriate or required, it is agreed that 

at a minimum Lessor shall have the right to require at two (2) year intervals that such coverage 

be increased in an amount proportionate to the increase of any, in the most current Consumer 

Price Index for All Urban Consumers - U.S. City Average (all items), published by the U.S. 

Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (the "CPI-U"). 

 



 

4 

  (b) Reciprocal Waiver of Subrogation.  Each party waives subrogation against 

the other with respect to any loss or claim covered by insurance arising under or in connection 

with this Lease or otherwise related to the Premises or the use thereof. 

 

  (c)        Certificates of Insurance. Lessee shall provide Lessor with a certificate of 

all such insurance coverage described above, at or prior to taking possession of the Premises. No 

such policy or policies may be cancelled without thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lessor 

and any mortgagee, and said certificate shall so provide. 

 

 14. Net Lease.  This Lease is intended, and shall be deemed and construed be a "Net 

Lease". Lessor shall receive all rents free of any charges, assessments, impositions, expenses, 

deductions and offsets of any kind or nature whatsoever with respect to the Premises, save and 

except income, gift, inheritance, estate and similar taxes chargeable to Lessor and attributable to 

the Premises or the income derived by Lessor therefrom. Except as otherwise provided herein, 

Lessee shall pay all costs, expenses and charges for insurance, utilities, repairs, maintenance, 

excises, levies, licenses, permit fees and other governmental charges attributable to the periods 

during which this Lease is in effect or attributable to any transfer or conveyance of any interest 

or estate of Lessee. 

 

 15. Condition of Premises.  The Premises is currently under Lessee’s control and is in 

good condition. All permit fees and costs of compliance with City Codes for Lessee's occupancy 

of the Premises and the costs of all leasehold improvements installed by Lessee and any 

remodeling, additions or improvements made by Lessee, shall be the sole cost and expense of 

Lessee. Plans for any improvements, additions or remodeling planned by Lessee, other than as 

permitted herein, shall be first presented to Lessor for review and approval, which approval shall 

not be unreasonably withheld; and, in the absence of a response from Lessor within ten (10) days 

from the date such plans are submitted, the same shall be deemed approved. Any such additions, 

improvements and remodeling shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner and in 

compliance with all local ordinances, codes and regulations. Lessee shall provide Lessor with a 

copy of all "as-built" drawings and plans for any improvements and remodeling work done. All 

additions, improvements and fixtures installed or constructed by Lessee shall become a part of 

the leased Premises and, upon the expiration or termination of this Lease for any reason, the 

same shall become and remain the property of Lessor. Lessee shall keep and maintain the 

Premises, including any improvements, additions or fixtures installed by Lessee, in a good and 

proper condition and state of repair and, upon the expiration or termination of this Lease, Lessee 

shall return the Premises, including Lessee improvements, to Lessor in a clean and orderly 

condition, ordinary wear excepted. 

 

 16. No Liens.  Lessee shall keep the Premises free and clear of any and all liens for 

labor performed and materials provided to the Premises or otherwise attributable to Lessee's 

operations conducted on the Premises. To this end, Lessee shall pay, on or before the time same 

come due, all charges for services and utilities provided to the Premises and all personal property 

taxes, withholding taxes, sales taxes, tourism taxes, unemployment taxes and all other taxes, 

charges and assessments of the City of Salida, Chaffee County, the Colorado Department of 

Revenue and other taxing authorities, to the extent that such fees are applicable to Lessee given 



 

5 

its non-profit status. Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold Lessor and the Premises harmless 

from Mechanic's Liens and claims arising out of Lessee's activities, and all losses arising from 

nonpayment of such claims, including attorney's fees incurred by Lessor in connection therewith. 

At Lessor's option. Lessee may be required to bond over any lien which Lessee is at any time in 

good faith contesting, if such lien is then interfering with a financing, sale or refinancing of  

Premises. 

 

 17. Damages to Premises.  If the Premises is damaged by fire or any other cause to 

such an extent that the cost of restoration, as reasonably estimated by Lessor, will equal or 

exceed fifty percent (50%) of the replacement value of the Premises (exclusive of foundations) 

just prior to the occurrence of the damage, then Lessor may, no later than the 5
th

  day following 

the damage, give Lessee a notice of election to terminate this lease, or if the cost of restoration 

will equal or exceed fifty percent of such replacement value and if the Premises shall not be 

reasonably useable for the purposes for which they are leased under this agreement, then Lessee 

may, no later than the 5
th

 day following the damage, give Lessor a notice of election to terminate 

this lease. In event of either such election this Lease shall be deemed to terminate on the 2
nd

 day 

after the giving of such notice, and Lessee shall surrender possession of the Premises within a 

reasonable time thereafter, and the rent, and any additional rent, shall be apportioned as of the 

date of the surrender and any rent paid for any period beyond this date shall be repaid to tenant. 

 

   In any case in which use of the Premises as Chamber offices and visitor center is affected 

by damage, there shall be either an abatement or an equitable reduction in rent depending on the 

period for which and the extent to which the Premises are not reasonably usable for the purpose 

for which they are leased under this agreement. The words "restoration" and "restore" as used in 

this section shall include repairs. If the damage results from the fault of the Lessee, or Lessee's 

agents, servants, visitors, or licensees, Lessee shall not be entitled to any abatement or reduction 

of rent, except to the extent, if any, that Lessor receives the proceeds of rent insurance in lieu of 

such rent. 

 

 If the cost of restoration as estimated by Lessor shall amount to less than fifty percent of 

the replacement value of the Premises, or if, despite the cost, Lessor does not elect to terminate 

this lease, Lessor shall restore the Premises with reasonable promptness, subject to delays 

beyond Lessor's control and delays in the making of insurance adjustments between Lessor and 

any insurance carrier, and Lessee shall have no right to terminate this Lease except as provided 

in this Lease. Lessor need not restore fixtures and improvements owned by tenant. 

 

 18. Lessor's Remedies on Default.  Lessor's rights under this section are in addition to 

any remedy allowed by law. If Lessee shall fail to pay the annual rent or other monetary 

obligation hereunder within ten (10) days after written notice of such default or, if default shall 

be made in any of the other covenants or agreements herein contained to be kept and performed 

by Lessee, and such default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice, or 

such longer period as shall be reasonably required to correct such non-monetary default, it shall 

thereafter be lawful, and Lessor shall have the absolute right, to declare the term of this Lease 

ended; and, without releasing Lessee from any of Lessee's obligations hereunder. Lessor shall 

have the right to re-enter said Premises and repossess said leased Premises, either with or without 



 

6 

process of law, in which event. Lessee covenants and agrees to surrender and deliver up said 

Premises peaceably to Lessor immediately upon such termination, but Lessee shall nevertheless 

remain liable for the balance of the rent and other sums herein agreed to be paid by Lessee, for 

the otherwise unexpired term of this Lease; or, at Lessor's option. Lessor may permit Lessee to 

remain in possession under this Lease and Lessor may bring an action or successive actions for 

damages suffered by Lessor because of the breach of any covenant or condition, without 

prejudice to the rights of Lessor to proceed as provided above, or as otherwise permitted by law, 

with respect to any subsequent or future breach of any covenant or condition contained in this 

Lease. In the event of a default by Lessee, Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate its 

damages to the extent required by law. 

 

 19. Deficiency.  In any case where Lessor has recovered possession of the Premises 

by reason of Lessee's default, Lessor may, at Lessor's option, occupy the Premises or cause the 

Premises to be redecorated, altered, divided, or otherwise changed or prepared for reletting, and 

may relet the Premises as agent of Lessee or otherwise, for a term or terms to expire prior to, at 

the same time as, or subsequent to, the original expiration date of this lease, at Lessor's option, 

and receive the rent. Rent so received shall be applied first to the payment of such expenses as 

Lessor may have incurred in connection with the recovery of possession, redecorating, altering, 

dividing, or otherwise changing or preparing the Premises for reletting, and the reletting, 

including brokerage and reasonable attorneys' fees, and then to the payment of damages in 

amounts equal to the rent under this agreement and to the cost and expenses of performance of 

the other covenants of Lessee as provided in this lease. Lessee agrees, in any such case, whether 

or not Lessor has relet, to pay to Lessor damages equal to the rent and other sums agreed to be 

paid by Lessee, less the net proceeds of the reletting, if any, and the damages shall be payable by 

Lessee on the several rent days specified above. In reletting the Premises, Lessor may grant rent 

concessions, and Lessee shall not be credited with such concessions. No such reletting shall 

constitute a surrender and acceptance or be deemed evidence of a surrender and acceptance. If 

Lessor elects, pursuant to this agreement, actually to occupy and use the Premises or any part of 

the Premises during any part of the balance of the term as originally fixed or since extended, 

there shall be allowed against Lessee's obligation for rent or damages as defined in this lease, 

during the period of Lessor's occupancy, the reasonable value of such occupancy, not to exceed, 

in any event, the rent reserved in this lease, and such occupancy shall not be construed as a relief 

of Lessee's liability under this agreement. 

 

 Lessee waives all right of redemption to which Lessee or any person claiming under 

Lessee might be entitled by any law now or hereafter in force. Lessor's remedies under this 

agreement are in addition to any remedy allowed by law. 

 

 20. Lessor's Right to Cure.   If Lessee breaches any covenant or condition of this 

Lease, or fails to make any payments required hereunder for insurance, utilities, or otherwise, 

Lessor may, at its option, upon five (5) days advance written notice to Lessee, cure such breach, 

at the expense of Lessee, and the reasonable amount of all expenses, including attorneys' fees 

incurred by Lessor in doing so, together with interest at me rate of eighteen percent (18%) per 

annum from the date of advancement shall be deemed additional rent, payable on demand.   

 



 

7 

 21. Bankruptcy.  If Lessee is declared insolvent or bankrupt, or if an assignment of 

Lessee's property is made for the benefit of its creditors, or if Lessee's leasehold interest 

hereunder is levied upon under execution or taken by virtue of any writ of any court of law, or if 

a trustee in bankruptcy or a receiver is appointed for Lessee or over Lessee's property, and such 

action, proceedings or appointment is not reversed, dismissed or otherwise rendered inapplicable 

within thirty (30) days thereafter, then Lessor may, at its option, immediately, with or without 

notice, terminate and cancel this Lease and take possession of the Premises, without thereby 

occasioning a forfeiture of any of the obligations of Lessee which have previously accrued under 

this Lease. 

 

 22. Eminent Domain.   If the Premises, any part of the Premises, or any estate in the 

Premises be taken by eminent domain, this Lease shall terminate on the date when title vests 

pursuant to such a taking. The rent, and any additional rent, shall be apportioned as of the 

termination date and any rent paid for any period beyond that date shall be repaid to Lessee. 

Lessee shall not be entitled to any part of the award for such taking or any payment in lieu of 

such payment, but Lessee may file a claim for any taking of fixtures and improvements owned 

by Lessee, and for moving expenses. 

 

 23. Effect of Failure to Insist on Strict Compliance With Conditions.  The failure of 

either party to insist on strict performance of any covenant or condition of this agreement, or to 

exercise any option contained in this lease, shall not be construed as a waiver of such covenant, 

condition, or option in any other instance. This Lease cannot be changed or terminated orally. 

 

 24. Subordination of Lease.  This Lease shall be subject and subordinate to all 

underlying leases and to deeds to secure debt which may now or subsequently affect such leases 

or the real property constituting the Premises, and also to all renewals, modifications, 

consolidations, and replacements of the underlying leases and the deeds to secure debt. Although 

no instrument or act on the part of Lessee shall be necessary to effectuate such a subordination, 

Lessee will, nevertheless, execute and deliver any further instruments confirming such a 

subordination of this Lease as may be desired by the holders of the deeds to secure debt or by 

any of the Lessors under the underlying leases. Lessee appoints Lessor as attorney in fact, 

irrevocably, to execute and deliver any such instrument for Lessee. If any underlying lease to 

which this Lease is subject terminates, Lessee shall, on timely request, attorn to the owner of the 

reversion. 

 

 25. Notices.  Any notice by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed to have been duly given only if delivered personally or sent by registered or certified 

mail in an addressed postpaid envelope; if to Lessee, at the above described Premises; if to 

Lessor, at Lessor's address as set forth above; or, to either, at any other address as Lessee or 

Lessor, respectively, may designate in writing. Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given, 

if delivered personally, upon delivery, and if mailed, upon the 3
rd

 day after the mailing of such 

notice. 

 

 26. Lessor's Right to Inspection, Repair, and Maintenance.  Lessor may enter the 

Premises at any reasonable time, upon adequate notice to Lessee (except that no notice need be 



 

8 

given in case of emergency) for the purpose of inspection or the making of such repairs, 

replacements, or additions in, to, on and about the Premises, as Lessor deems necessary or 

desirable. Lessee shall have no claim or cause of action against Lessor by reason of such entry. 

  

 27. Interruption of Services or Use.  Interruption or curtailment of any service 

maintained on the Premises, if caused by mechanical difficulties or any causes beyond Lessor's 

control whether similar or dissimilar to those enumerated, shall not entitle Lessee to any claim 

against Lessor or to any abatement in rent, and shall not constitute constructive or partial 

eviction, unless Lessor fails to take such measures as may be reasonable in the circumstances to 

restore the service without undue delay. If the Premises is rendered untenantable in whole or in 

part, for a period of five (5) business days, by the making of repairs, replacements, or additions, 

other than those made with Lessee's consent or caused by misuse or neglect by Lessee or 

Lessee's agents, servants, visitors, or licensees, there shall be a proportionate abatement of rent 

during the period of such untenantability. 

 

 28. Lessor's Right To Show Premises.  Lessor may show the Premises to prospective 

purchasers and mortgagees and, during the three (3) months prior to termination of this lease, to 

prospective tenants, during business hours upon reasonable notice to Lessee. 

 

 29. Effect of Other Representations.  No representations or promises shall be binding 

on the parties to this agreement except those representations and promises contained in this lease, 

or in some future writing signed by the party making such representations or promises. 

 

 30. Peaceful Enjoyment.  Lessor covenants that if, and so long as, Lessee pays the 

rent, and any additional rent as provided in this lease, and performs the covenants of this lease, 

Lessee shall peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises for the term mentioned in 

this lease, subject to the provisions of this lease. 

 

 31. Lessee's Certification as to Force and Effect of Lease.  Lessee shall, from time to 

time, upon not less than seven (7) days' prior written request by Lessor, execute, acknowledge, 

and deliver to Lessor a written statement certifying that the Lease is unmodified and in full force 

and effect, or that the Lease is in full force and effect as modified and listing the instruments of 

modification; the dates to which the rents and other charges have been paid; and, whether or not 

to the best of Lessee's knowledge Lessor is in default under this Lease and, if so, specifying the 

nature of the default. It is intended that any such statement delivered pursuant to this section may 

be relied upon by a prospective purchaser of Lessor's interest or mortgagee of Lessor's interest or 

assignee of any mortgage upon Lessor's interest in the Premises. 

 

 32. Section Headings.  The section headings in this Lease are intended for 

convenience only and shall not be taken into consideration in any construction or interpretation 

of this Lease or any of its provisions. 

 

 33. Binding Effect on Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of Lease shall apply 

to, bind, and inure to the benefit of Lessor and Lessee, and their respective heirs, successors, 

legal representatives, and assigns. It is understood that the term "Lessor" as used in Lease means 



 

9 

only the owner, a mortgagee in possession, or a term Lessee of the Premises, so that in the event 

of any sale of the Premises or of any lease of the Premises, or if a mortgagee shall take 

possession of the Premises, the Lessor shall be entirely freed and relieved of all covenants and 

obligations of Lessor subsequently accruing under this agreement. It shall be deemed without 

further agreement that the purchaser, the term Lessee of the Premises, or the mortgagee in 

possession has assumed and agreed to carry out any and all covenants and obligations of the 

Lessor under this agreement. 

 

 34. Warranty of Authorized Signatories.  Each of the signatories hereto warrants and 

represents that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Lease on behalf of the 

party for whom he or she purports to sign, and each agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless each other party against each claim, suit or demand, including necessary expenses of 

investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees, in which it may be asserted that he or she was not 

competent and/or so authorized to execute this Lease and receive the consideration therefor. 

 

 35. Governing Law.  This Lease shall be interpreted in accordance with and governed 

in all respects by the laws of the State of Colorado. 

 

 36. Severability.  If any provision, or any part of any provision of this Lease shall for 

any reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or contrary to public policy or any law, then the 

remainder of this Lease shall not be affected thereby. 

 

 37. Effective Date.  This Lease shall be effective on the date it has been signed by all 

parties.  

 

 38. Counterparts.  This Lease may be signed by the parties in counterparts, and each 

signed counterpart shall become part of the final Lease and shall have the same force and effect 

thereof.  A copy of any signature on a signature page shall be as valid and binding as an original 

signature. 

 

 39.  Facsimile.  Signatures may be evidenced by facsimile.  Original signatures shall 

be provided to the other party upon request of either party. 

 

 40. Attorney Fees.  In the event of a breach of this lease, the prevailing party shall be 

entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs.  This provision shall survive the termination of this 

Lease. 

 

Lessor:      

 Lessee: 

  

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO   THE HEART OF THE 

ROCKIES 

       CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

 



 

10 

____________________________  By

 ______________________________

_ 

      Name

 ______________________________

_ 

      Title

 ______________________________

_ 

 

ATTEST:       

 

 

____________________________    

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 



    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

 
    
MEETING DATE:  January 
 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Commercial Property Lease
    Ordinance

Salida
Salida Museum Association

 
PRESENTED BY:  Dara MacDonald
 
REQUEST: 

 
The request is to pass an ordinance
current location in Centennial Park
the expenses for utilities and insurance with the exception of phone service. 
 
Following discussions with members of the museum board
agreement.  The lease is currently being reviewed by the 
  
 
Action:  
 
A Council person should make a motion to approve
Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, approving a commercial 
Association, setting the public hearing date for 
published in full.”  
 
Followed by a second and a roll call vote.

 
 

ITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM  

January 17, 2012  

Commercial Property Lease Agreement  
Ordinance 2012- 03 an ordinance of the City Council of the 
Salida, Colorado, approving a commercial property lease 
Salida Museum Association. 

Dara MacDonald, Community Development Director

ordinance approving a 20-year lease with the Salida Museum
nnial Park.  The museum currently occupies this location.  The City covers 

the expenses for utilities and insurance with the exception of phone service.  

members of the museum board, the City attorney drafted the lease 
agreement.  The lease is currently being reviewed by the museum board. 

A Council person should make a motion to approve “Ordinance 2012-03 an ordinance of the City 
, Colorado, approving a commercial property lease with 

setting the public hearing date for February 7, 2012, and ordering the ordinance to be 

roll call vote. 

 ___ 

of the City Council of the City of 
lease with the 

Community Development Director 

Salida Museum at their 
currently occupies this location.  The City covers 

the City attorney drafted the lease 

an ordinance of the City 
with Salida Museum 

, and ordering the ordinance to be 

  



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 3 

(Series of 2012) 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

APPROVING A COMMERCIAL PROPERTY LEASE WITH THE SALIDA MUSEUM 

ASSOCIATION.   

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Salida is the owner of certain real property known as the Salida 

Museum located at 406 1/2 West Highway 50 in the City of Salida (the “Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Salida Museum Association desires to lease the Property from the City 

through December 31, 2032; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Salida City Council is willing to lease the Property to the Salida 

Museum Association subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Commercial Property 

Lease for the Property attached as Exhibit A. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALIDA, COLORADO THAT:  

 

1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.  

 

2. The City Council hereby approves the Commercial Property Lease with the Salida 

Museum Association attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference and 

authorizes the Mayor and the Deputy City Clerk to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City.   

 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, ADOPTED and ORDERED PUBLISHED IN 

FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City Council on the 17
th

 

day of January, 2012 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 7
th

 day of February, 

2012. 

 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on the 7
th

 day of February, 2012. 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

___________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Salida, Colorado 

Ordinance No. 3, Series of 2012 

Page 2 of 2 

 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in the Mountain Mail after First Reading on the ___ day of 

________, 2012, and BY TITLE ONLY, after final adoption on the _____day of __________, 

2012. 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

1 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY LEASE 
 

 This LEASE is  made and entered into on the date set forth below, by and between the 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, a Colorado municipal corporation whose address is 448 East 

1
st
 Street, Suite 112, Salida, CO 81201 (the “Lessor”), and SALIDA MUSEUM 

ASSOCIATION, a Colorado non-profit corporation whose address is 406 1/2 West Rainbow 

Boulevard, Salida, CO 81201 (“Lessee”). 

 

 W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessor owns the building and surrounding real property known as the Salida 

Museum and located at 406 1/2 West Highway 50 in the City of Salida (the “Premises”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessee was instrumental in the fund raising and construction of the Premises 

has occupied the Premises since 1975 without a formal lease agreement; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Lessee desires to continue to lease the Premises from Lessor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the parties desire to set forth the terms and conditions of the Lease of the 

Premises.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 

contained herein, the adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

 

 1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated by this 

reference. 

 

 2. Term of Lease.  The term of the Lease shall be from January 1, 2012 to December 

31, 2032 (the “Initial Term”), or on such earlier date as this Lease may terminate as provided 

below. 

 

  Either party may terminate this lease agreement for any reason upon 180 days written 

notice to the non-terminating party.  In the event that additional time is needed to remove the 

Lessee’s personal property from the Premises Lessor shall allow the Lessee to holdover for an 

additional ninety (90) days or until the property is removed whichever is less. 

 

 3. Rent.   Lessee shall not be required to pay rent provided the Premises are used for 

the purposes described below. 

 

 4. Use and Occupancy.  Lessee shall use and occupy the Premises for the operation 

of the Salida Museum and for no other purpose; provided, however, Lessee may rent and 

sublease a portion of the Premises to a third party as set forth in Section 12 below.  Lessor 

represents that the Premises may lawfully be used for this purpose.  



 

 

2 

 

 5. Place for Payment of Rent.  Lessee shall pay rent, and any additional rent as 

provided below, to Lessor at Lessor's above-stated address, or at such other place as Lessor may 

designate in writing, without demand and without counterclaim, deduction, or setoff. 

 

 6. Care and Repair of Premises.    Lessee shall commit no act of waste and shall 

maintain in good condition at its own cost and expense the Premises and all fixtures and 

appurtenances.  Lessee shall, in the use and occupancy of the Premises, conform to all laws, 

orders, and regulations of the federal, state, and municipal governments or any of their 

departments.  Lessee shall make all necessary repairs, modifications, and replacements to the 

Premises and all fixtures and appurtenances within a reasonable time and shall at all times 

maintain the Premises in good working order.   

  

 Lessee shall maintain and keep in good condition and repair the interior and exterior of 

the improvements situate on the Premises against ordinary wear and tear.  Lessee shall keep and 

maintain all sidewalks and drives adjacent to the Premises in a neat, clean and sanitary condition 

and reasonably free of litter, dirt, debris, obstructions, ice and snow.  Lessor shall make 

reasonable structural repairs to the Premises in a reasonable amount of time following notice 

from Lessee of the need for such repairs. 

  

 All improvements made by Lessee which are so attached to the Premises that they cannot 

be removed without material injury to the Premises shall become the property of Lessor upon 

installation. 

 

 No later than the last day of the term Lessee shall, at Lessee's expense, remove all of 

Lessee's personal property and those improvements made by Lessee which have not become the 

property of Lessor.  Lessee shall also repair all injury done by or in connection with the 

installation or removal of the property and improvements, and surrender the Premises in as good 

condition as it was at the beginning of the term, reasonable wear, and damage by fire, the 

elements, casualty, or other cause not due to the misuse or neglect by Lessee or Lessee's agents, 

servants, visitors or licensees, excepted. All property of Lessee remaining on the Premises after 

the Term shall be conclusively deemed abandoned and may be removed by Lessor, and Lessee 

shall reimburse Lessor for the cost of such removal. Lessor may have any such property stored at 

Lessee's risk and expense. 

 

   

 7. Alterations, Additions or Improvements.  Lessee shall not, without first obtaining 

the written consent of Lessor, make any alterations, additions or improvements in, to or about the 

Premises.  Lessor has the right to make improvements to the Property so long as those 

improvements do not conflict with the operation of the museum as it has been historically 

operated, unless Lessee consents to such conflict. 

 



 

 

3 

 8. Prohibition Against Activities Increasing Fire Insurance Rates.  Lessee shall not 

do or suffer anything to be done on the Premises which will cause an increase in the rate of fire 

insurance for the Premises. 

 

 9. Accumulation of Waste or Refuse Matter.  Lessee shall not permit the 

accumulation of waste or refuse matter on the Premises or anywhere in or near the Premises. 

 

 10. Abandonment.  Lessee shall not, without first obtaining the written consent of the 

Lessor, abandon the Premises, or allow the Premises to become vacant or deserted. 

 

 11. Assignment and Sublease.   Lessee shall not assign, mortgage, pledge, or 

encumber this lease, in whole or in part, or sublet the Premises or any part of such Premises, 

except as provided for in this Section.  Lessee may assign this Lease to any entity wholly owned 

and controlled by Lessee upon notice to Lessor of such assignment.  Lessee may sublease and 

rent a portion or portions of the Premises to a third party so long as Lessee’s insurance fully 

covers the intended use of the Premises, the sublease expressly states that it is subordinate and 

subject to this Lease, specifically the termination clauses, and Lessor approves the sublease and 

tenant, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The sublease must contain a 

prohibition of any items placed in the windows other than traditional non-symbolic window 

coverings.  This covenant shall be binding upon the legal representatives of Lessee, and upon 

every person to whom Lessee's interest under this Lease passes by operation of law. 

 

 12. Utilities.  Lessee shall be responsible for and pay the cost of the following utilities 

provided to the Premises:  phone service.  Lessor shall pay natural gas, electric, water and sewer.  

All other utilities or services attributable to periods during the Term of this Lease shall be the 

responsibility of the Lessee. 

  

 13. Insurance.  Lessee shall hold Lessor harmless from, and indemnify and defend 

Lessor against any damages, liability or claims arising out of or incident to the use of the 

Premises by Lessee, its customers, invitees, licensees, sublessees, subcontractors or employee.  

Lessee shall defend any litigation at its own cost and expense which may be brought against 

Lessor or Lessee, arising out of the Lessee’s use of the Premises.  The parties acknowledge that 

the City maintains at its expense a Property and Crime Coverage Policy on the Premises with the 

Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (“CIRSA”). 

 

 

 14. Net Lease.  This Lease is intended, and shall be deemed and construed be a "Net 

Lease". Lessor shall receive all rents free of any charges, assessments, impositions, expenses, 

deductions and offsets of any kind or nature whatsoever with respect to the Premises, save and 

except income, gift, inheritance, estate and similar taxes chargeable to Lessor and attributable to 

the Premises or the income derived by Lessor therefrom. Except as otherwise provided herein, 

Lessee shall pay all costs, expenses and charges for insurance, utilities, repairs, maintenance, 

excises, levies, licenses, permit fees and other governmental charges attributable to the periods 



 

 

4 

during which this Lease is in effect or attributable to any transfer or conveyance of any interest 

or estate of Lessee. 

 

 15. Condition of Premises.  The Premises is currently under Lessee’s control and is in 

good condition. All permit fees and costs of compliance with City Codes for Lessee's occupancy 

of the Premises and the costs of all leasehold improvements installed by Lessee and any 

remodeling, additions or improvements made by Lessee, shall be the sole cost and expense of 

Lessee. Plans for any improvements, additions or remodeling planned by Lessee, other than as 

permitted herein, shall be first presented to Lessor for review and approval, which approval shall 

not be unreasonably withheld; and, in the absence of a response from Lessor within ten (10) days 

from the date such plans are submitted, the same shall be deemed approved. Any such additions, 

improvements and remodeling shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner and in 

compliance with all local ordinances, codes and regulations. Lessee shall provide Lessor with a 

copy of all "as-built" drawings and plans for any improvements and remodeling work done. All 

additions, improvements and fixtures installed or constructed by Lessee shall become a part of 

the leased Premises and, upon the expiration or termination of this Lease for any reason, the 

same shall become and remain the property of Lessor. Lessee shall keep and maintain the 

Premises, including any improvements, additions or fixtures installed by Lessee, in a good and 

proper condition and state of repair and, upon the expiration or termination of this Lease, Lessee 

shall return the Premises, including Lessee improvements, to Lessor in a clean and orderly 

condition, ordinary wear excepted. 

 

 16. No Liens.  Lessee shall keep the Premises free and clear of any and all liens for 

labor performed and materials provided to the Premises or otherwise attributable to Lessee's 

operations conducted on the Premises. To this end, Lessee shall pay, on or before the time same 

come due, all charges for services and utilities provided to the Premises and all personal property 

taxes, withholding taxes, sales taxes, tourism taxes, unemployment taxes and all other taxes, 

charges and assessments of the City of Salida, Chaffee County, the Colorado Department of 

Revenue and other taxing authorities, to the extent that such fees are applicable to Lessee given 

its non-profit status. Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold Lessor and the Premises harmless 

from Mechanic's Liens and claims arising out of Lessee's activities, and all losses arising from 

nonpayment of such claims, including attorney's fees incurred by Lessor in connection therewith. 

At Lessor's option. Lessee may be required to bond over any lien which Lessee is at any time in 

good faith contesting, if such lien is then interfering with a financing, sale or refinancing of  

Premises. 

 

 17. Damages to Premises.  If the Premises is damaged by fire or any other cause to 

such an extent that the cost of restoration, as reasonably estimated by Lessor, will equal or 

exceed fifty percent (50%) of the replacement value of the Premises (exclusive of foundations) 

just prior to the occurrence of the damage, then Lessor may, no later than the 5
th

  day following 

the damage, give Lessee a notice of election to terminate this lease, or if the cost of restoration 

will equal or exceed fifty percent of such replacement value and if the Premises shall not be 

reasonably useable for the purposes for which they are leased under this agreement, then Lessee 

may, no later than the 5
th

 day following the damage, give Lessor a notice of election to terminate 



 

 

5 

this lease. In event of either such election this Lease shall be deemed to terminate on the 2
nd

 day 

after the giving of such notice, and Lessee shall surrender possession of the Premises within a 

reasonable time thereafter, and the rent, and any additional rent, shall be apportioned as of the 

date of the surrender and any rent paid for any period beyond this date shall be repaid to tenant. 

 

   In any case in which use of the Premises as a museum is affected by damage, there shall 

be either an abatement or an equitable reduction in rent depending on the period for which and 

the extent to which the Premises are not reasonably usable for the purpose for which they are 

leased under this agreement. The words "restoration" and "restore" as used in this section shall 

include repairs. If the damage results from the fault of the Lessee, or Lessee's agents, servants, 

visitors, or licensees, Lessee shall not be entitled to any abatement or reduction of rent, except to 

the extent, if any, that Lessor receives the proceeds of rent insurance in lieu of such rent. 

 

 If the cost of restoration as estimated by Lessor shall amount to less than fifty percent of 

the replacement value of the Premises, or if, despite the cost, Lessor does not elect to terminate 

this lease, Lessor shall restore the Premises with reasonable promptness, subject to delays 

beyond Lessor's control and delays in the making of insurance adjustments between Lessor and 

any insurance carrier, and Lessee shall have no right to terminate this Lease except as provided 

in this Lease. Lessor need not restore fixtures and improvements owned by tenant. 

 

 18. Lessor's Remedies on Default.  Lessor's rights under this section are in addition to 

any remedy allowed by law. If Lessee shall fail to pay the annual rent or other monetary 

obligation hereunder within ten (10) days after written notice of such default or, if default shall 

be made in any of the other covenants or agreements herein contained to be kept and performed 

by Lessee, and such default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice, or 

such longer period as shall be reasonably required to correct such non-monetary default, it shall 

thereafter be lawful, and Lessor shall have the absolute right, to declare the term of this Lease 

ended; and, without releasing Lessee from any of Lessee's obligations hereunder. Lessor shall 

have the right to re-enter said Premises and repossess said leased Premises, either with or without 

process of law, in which event. Lessee covenants and agrees to surrender and deliver up said 

Premises peaceably to Lessor immediately upon such termination, but Lessee shall nevertheless 

remain liable for the balance of the rent and other sums herein agreed to be paid by Lessee, for 

the otherwise unexpired term of this Lease; or, at Lessor's option. Lessor may permit Lessee to 

remain in possession under this Lease and Lessor may bring an action or successive actions for 

damages suffered by Lessor because of the breach of any covenant or condition, without 

prejudice to the rights of Lessor to proceed as provided above, or as otherwise permitted by law, 

with respect to any subsequent or future breach of any covenant or condition contained in this 

Lease. In the event of a default by Lessee, Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate its 

damages to the extent required by law. 

 

 19. Deficiency.  In any case where Lessor has recovered possession of the Premises 

by reason of Lessee's default, Lessor may, at Lessor's option, occupy the Premises or cause the 

Premises to be redecorated, altered, divided, or otherwise changed or prepared for reletting, and 

may relet the Premises as agent of Lessee or otherwise, for a term or terms to expire prior to, at 



 

 

6 

the same time as, or subsequent to, the original expiration date of this lease, at Lessor's option, 

and receive the rent. Rent so received shall be applied first to the payment of such expenses as 

Lessor may have incurred in connection with the recovery of possession, redecorating, altering, 

dividing, or otherwise changing or preparing the Premises for reletting, and the reletting, 

including brokerage and reasonable attorneys' fees, and then to the payment of damages in 

amounts equal to the rent under this agreement and to the cost and expenses of performance of 

the other covenants of Lessee as provided in this lease. Lessee agrees, in any such case, whether 

or not Lessor has relet, to pay to Lessor damages equal to the rent and other sums agreed to be 

paid by Lessee, less the net proceeds of the reletting, if any, and the damages shall be payable by 

Lessee on the several rent days specified above. In reletting the Premises, Lessor may grant rent 

concessions, and Lessee shall not be credited with such concessions. No such reletting shall 

constitute a surrender and acceptance or be deemed evidence of a surrender and acceptance. If 

Lessor elects, pursuant to this agreement, actually to occupy and use the Premises or any part of 

the Premises during any part of the balance of the term as originally fixed or since extended, 

there shall be allowed against Lessee's obligation for rent or damages as defined in this lease, 

during the period of Lessor's occupancy, the reasonable value of such occupancy, not to exceed, 

in any event, the rent reserved in this lease, and such occupancy shall not be construed as a relief 

of Lessee's liability under this agreement. 

 

 Lessee waives all right of redemption to which Lessee or any person claiming under 

Lessee might be entitled by any law now or hereafter in force. Lessor's remedies under this 

agreement are in addition to any remedy allowed by law. 

 

 20. Lessor's Right to Cure.   If Lessee breaches any covenant or condition of this 

Lease, or fails to make any payments required hereunder for insurance, utilities, or otherwise, 

Lessor may, at its option, upon five (5) days advance written notice to Lessee, cure such breach, 

at the expense of Lessee, and the reasonable amount of all expenses, including attorneys' fees 

incurred by Lessor in doing so, together with interest at me rate of eighteen percent (18%) per 

annum from the date of advancement shall be deemed additional rent, payable on demand.   

 

 21. Bankruptcy.  If Lessee is declared insolvent or bankrupt, or if an assignment of 

Lessee's property is made for the benefit of its creditors, or if Lessee's leasehold interest 

hereunder is levied upon under execution or taken by virtue of any writ of any court of law, or if 

a trustee in bankruptcy or a receiver is appointed for Lessee or over Lessee's property, and such 

action, proceedings or appointment is not reversed, dismissed or otherwise rendered inapplicable 

within thirty (30) days thereafter, then Lessor may, at its option, immediately, with or without 

notice, terminate and cancel this Lease and take possession of the Premises, without thereby 

occasioning a forfeiture of any of the obligations of Lessee which have previously accrued under 

this Lease. 

 

 22. Eminent Domain.   If the Premises, any part of the Premises, or any estate in the 

Premises be taken by eminent domain, this Lease shall terminate on the date when title vests 

pursuant to such a taking. The rent, and any additional rent, shall be apportioned as of the 

termination date and any rent paid for any period beyond that date shall be repaid to Lessee. 



 

 

7 

Lessee shall not be entitled to any part of the award for such taking or any payment in lieu of 

such payment, but Lessee may file a claim for any taking of fixtures and improvements owned 

by Lessee, and for moving expenses. 

 

 23. Effect of Failure to Insist on Strict Compliance With Conditions.  The failure of 

either party to insist on strict performance of any covenant or condition of this agreement, or to 

exercise any option contained in this lease, shall not be construed as a waiver of such covenant, 

condition, or option in any other instance. This Lease cannot be changed or terminated orally. 

 

 24. Subordination of Lease.  This Lease shall be subject and subordinate to all 

underlying leases and to deeds to secure debt which may now or subsequently affect such leases 

or the real property constituting the Premises, and also to all renewals, modifications, 

consolidations, and replacements of the underlying leases and the deeds to secure debt. Although 

no instrument or act on the part of Lessee shall be necessary to effectuate such a subordination, 

Lessee will, nevertheless, execute and deliver any further instruments confirming such a 

subordination of this Lease as may be desired by the holders of the deeds to secure debt or by 

any of the Lessors under the underlying leases. Lessee appoints Lessor as attorney in fact, 

irrevocably, to execute and deliver any such instrument for Lessee. If any underlying lease to 

which this Lease is subject terminates, Lessee shall, on timely request, attorn to the owner of the 

reversion. 

 

 25. Notices.  Any notice by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed to have been duly given only if delivered personally or sent by registered or certified 

mail in an addressed postpaid envelope; if to Lessee, at the above described Premises; if to 

Lessor, at Lessor's address as set forth above; or, to either, at any other address as Lessee or 

Lessor, respectively, may designate in writing. Notice shall be deemed to have been duly given, 

if delivered personally, upon delivery, and if mailed, upon the 3
rd

 day after the mailing of such 

notice. 

 

 26. Lessor's Right to Inspection, Repair, and Maintenance.  Lessor may enter the 

Premises at any reasonable time, upon adequate notice to Lessee (except that no notice need be 

given in case of emergency) for the purpose of inspection or the making of such repairs, 

replacements, or additions in, to, on and about the Premises, as Lessor deems necessary or 

desirable. Lessee shall have no claim or cause of action against Lessor by reason of such entry. 

  

 27. Interruption of Services or Use.  Interruption or curtailment of any service 

maintained on the Premises, if caused by  mechanical difficulties or any causes beyond Lessor's 

control whether similar or dissimilar to those enumerated, shall not entitle Lessee to any claim 

against Lessor or to any abatement in rent, and shall not constitute constructive or partial 

eviction, unless Lessor fails to take such measures as may be reasonable in the circumstances to 

restore the service without undue delay. If the Premises is rendered untenantable in whole or in 

part, for a period of five (5) business days, by the making of repairs, replacements, or additions, 

other than those made with Lessee's consent or caused by misuse or neglect by Lessee or 



 

 

8 

Lessee's agents, servants, visitors, or licensees, there shall be a proportionate abatement of rent 

during the period of such untenantability. 

 

 28. Lessor's Right To Show Premises.  Lessor may show the Premises to prospective 

purchasers and mortgagees and, during the three (3) months prior to termination of this lease, to 

prospective tenants, during business hours upon reasonable notice to Lessee. 

 

 29. Effect of Other Representations.  No representations or promises shall be binding 

on the parties to this agreement except those representations and promises contained in this lease, 

or in some future writing signed by the party making such representations or promises. 

 

 30. Peaceful Enjoyment.  Lessor covenants that if, and so long as, Lessee pays the 

rent, and any additional rent as provided in this lease, and performs the covenants of this lease, 

Lessee shall peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises for the term mentioned in 

this lease, subject to the provisions of this lease. 

 

 31. Lessee's Certification as to Force and Effect of Lease.  Lessee shall, from time to 

time, upon not less than seven (7) days' prior written request by Lessor, execute, acknowledge, 

and deliver to Lessor a written statement certifying that the Lease is unmodified and in full force 

and effect, or that the Lease is in full force and effect as modified and listing the instruments of 

modification; the dates to which the rents and other charges have been paid; and, whether or not 

to the best of Lessee's knowledge Lessor is in default under this Lease and, if so, specifying the 

nature of the default. It is intended that any such statement delivered pursuant to this section may 

be relied upon by a prospective purchaser of Lessor's interest or mortgagee of Lessor's interest or 

assignee of any mortgage upon Lessor's interest in the Premises. 

 

 32. Section Headings.  The section headings in this Lease are intended for 

convenience only and shall not be taken into consideration in any construction or interpretation 

of this Lease or any of its provisions. 

 

 33. Binding Effect on Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of Lease shall apply 

to, bind, and inure to the benefit of Lessor and Lessee, and their respective heirs, successors, 

legal representatives, and assigns. It is understood that the term "Lessor" as used in Lease means 

only the owner, a mortgagee in possession, or a term Lessee of the Premises, so that in the event 

of any sale of the Premises or of any lease of the Premises, or if a mortgagee shall take 

possession of the Premises, the Lessor shall be entirely freed and relieved of all covenants and 

obligations of Lessor subsequently accruing under this agreement. It shall be deemed without 

further agreement that the purchaser, the term Lessee of the Premises, or the mortgagee in 

possession has assumed and agreed to carry out any and all covenants and obligations of the 

Lessor under this agreement. 

 

 34. Warranty of Authorized Signatories.  Each of the signatories hereto warrants and 

represents that he or she is competent and authorized to enter into this Lease on behalf of the 

party for whom he or she purports to sign, and each agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 



 

 

9 

harmless each other party against each claim, suit or demand, including necessary expenses of 

investigation and reasonable attorneys' fees, in which it may be asserted that he or she was not 

competent and/or so authorized to execute this Lease and receive the consideration therefor. 

 

 35. Governing Law.  This Lease shall be interpreted in accordance with and governed 

in all respects by the laws of the State of Colorado. 

 

 36. Severability.  If any provision, or any part of any provision of this Lease shall for 

any reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or contrary to public policy or any law, then the 

remainder of this Lease shall not be affected thereby. 

 

 37. Effective Date.  This Lease shall be effective on the date it has been signed by all 

parties.  

 

 38. Counterparts.  This Lease may be signed by the parties in counterparts, and each 

signed counterpart shall become part of the final Lease and shall have the same force and effect 

thereof.  A copy of any signature on a signature page shall be as valid and binding as an original 

signature. 

 

 39.  Facsimile.  Signatures may be evidenced by facsimile.  Original signatures shall 

be provided to the other party upon request of either party. 

 

 40. Attorney Fees.  In the event of a breach of this lease, the prevailing party shall be 

entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs.  This provision shall survive the termination of this 

Lease. 

 

Lessor:       Lessee: 

  

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO   SALIDA MUSEUM ASSOCIATION, INC. 

 

 

____________________________  By _______________________________ 

      Name _______________________________ 

      Title _______________________________ 

 

ATTEST:       

 

 

____________________________    

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 









CDOT Enhancement Grant Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 

 
_____________________CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM_____________________ 
  
MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2012  
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: CDOT Enhancement Grant Application 
 
PRESENTED BY: Dara MacDonald, Community Development Director 
 
 
REQUEST: 
The request is for approval of a resolution authorizing the City to submit a grant for CDOT 
Enhancement Grant funding for the U.S. Hwy 50 streetscape and indicating the Council is willing to 
commit $72,892 towards the match for the grant in 2013 or 2014. 
 
BACKGROUND REVIEW: 
In 2007 the City Council adopted the Highway Corridor Improvement Plan which calls for the installation 
of 6’ sidewalks, 4’ stamped concrete parkways and decorative streetlights on both sides of U.S. 
Highway 50. 
 
To date the City received three grants including both Enhancement funds and American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act funds and in 2009 improvements were installed from the intersection with 
Holman Ave to D Street.  The City is currently preparing bid documents to extend the 
improvements from their termination at D Street to the intersection of Hwy 50 and New Street/CR 
107.  The total funding for the project to date is $ 1,299,775.  Of this amount $ 1,133,154 was 
provided by federal funding administered by CDOT and $ 166,622 provided by the City in matching 
funds. 
 
The next logical phase for the project is to continue east from the Hwy 50 and New Street/CR 107 
intersection.  In a pre-scoping meeting on site with CDOT it was agreed that extension of the 
improvements to Palmer Street would be a good fit for the current grant cycle. 
 
The anticipated cost of completion of the improvements from New Street/CR 107 to Palmer Street 
is $ 719,203.  A 20% match would be no more than $ 143,841 provided by the City of Salida.  There 
is $ 885,275 available in funding for our region and Salida would be requesting $ 598,941 of those 
funds.  The city engineers, SGM, have provided assistance with estimating the project cost. 
 
Project funding is for CDOT fiscal years 2013 -2015 which begins July 1, 2012 and no funds can be 
spent on the project prior to that time. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff would suggest passing the resolution to authorize the application for CDOT Enhancement 
Grant funds.  
 



CDOT Enhancement Grant Page 2 of 2 

ACTION: 
A Council person should make a motion to approve “Resolution 2012-07 a resolution of the City 
Council for the City of Salida, Colorado supporting Salida’s application for CDOT Enhancement 
Grant funding.”  
 

Followed by a second and roll call vote. 



 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 07 

(Series of 2012) 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 

SUPPORTING SALIDA’S APPLICATION FOR CDOT ENHANCEMENT GRANT FUNDING 
 

 WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Salida desires to improve the appearance of the 

Hwy 50 corridor; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution 2007-42 adopting the Highway Corridor 

Improvement Plan; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has sought and obtained Enhancement Funds and American Reinvestment 

and Recovery Act funds for design and implementation of streetscape improvements along the U.S. Hwy 

50 corridor from the Holman Ave intersection to the New Street/CR 107 intersection; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the previously installed streetscape improvements have improved the corridor 

enhancing commercial viability and pedestrian accessibility and safety; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the anticipated cost to continue the improvements to the Palmer Street intersection 

is $719,203 and a 20% local match of at least $143,841 is required for Enhancement projects; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the plan is in accordance with community goals and completion of the 

improvements to the Palmer Street intersection would continue improvements in the core area of U.S. 

Hwy 50; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to seek funding assistance for this project through the 

CDOT Enhancement program. 

 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALIDA:  

 

1. The City Council incorporates the foregoing recitals as findings by the City Council. 

 

2. The City of Salida supports the submittal of an Enhancement Grant application and will 

support the grant with a financial match not to exceed $143,841 in fiscal years 2013-2015 

 

3. The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized to indicate the City Council’s approval of the 

Enhancement Grant application by signing the application. 

 

 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED, this 17
th
 day of January, 2012. 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Mayor 



City of Salida, Colorado 

Resolution No. 07, Series of 2012 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk 

 


































	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes
	Run Through Time

	Ch. 8, 10, 11 SMC
	Ordinance 2012-01
	Ch. 8
	Ch. 10
	Ch. 11

	Chamber Lease
	Ordinance 2012-02
	Lease

	Salida Museum Lease
	Ordinance 2012-03
	Lease

	Salida/Chaffee County IGA
	CDOT Enhancement Grant
	Cleora Townsites Plat
	City Administrator Profile A.M. Worksession

